
Horace City Council Meeting Agenda April 3, 2023  

(Updated) Horace City Council Meeting Agenda 
Monday, April 3, 2023 – 6:00 pm 

Fire Hall Event Center, 413 Main Street, Horace, ND 58047 

1. Call to Order

2. Declare Quorum | Pledge

3. Approve Regular Agenda

4. Approve Consent Agenda
a. Vendor Invoices
b. Pledge Reports
c. Floodplain Permit - 17025 50 ST SE
d. Horace Road Request – 81st Ave. S.
e. Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street Improvement District No. 2022-11 (Cub Creek 2nd Addition)

i. Progressive Estimate No. 3 to KPH, Inc.
f. 7675 Jacks Way – Rezone

i. 2ND Reading

5. Approval of the City Council Meeting Minutes from March 20, 2023

6. Public Comment

7. Sheriff’s Update | Craig Keller & Jake Murray, Cass County Sheriff’s Department

8. 64th Ave. S. Roundabout Project | Jim Dahlman, City Engineer & Brenton Holper, City
Administrator

a. Open House Public Information Meeting
i. April 10, 2023, from 5:00 pm to 8:00 pm

b. Cost-Share Options
i. Discussion & Action

c. Removal of Gate
i. Discussion & Action

9. Sanitary, Storm and Street Improvement District No. 2022-4 (Wall Avenue – Sheyenne Diversion to
Sheyenne River) | Jim Dahlman, City Engineer

a. Resident Discussion
b. Approve Plans & Specifications

i. Discussion & Action
c. Direct Auditor to Advertise for Bids

i. Discussion & Action

10. Sewer Ordinance | Jim Dahlman, City Engineer
a. 1st Reading

i. Discussion & Action



Horace City Council Meeting Agenda April 3, 2023  

11. Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street Improvement District No. 2022-9 (63rd Street – from Wall
Avenue to 82nd Avenue) | Jim Dahlman, City Engineer

a. Approve Plans & Specifications
i. Discussion & Action

b. Direct Auditor to Advertise for Bids
i. Discussion & Action

12. 856 Harvest Circle | Jace Hellman, Community Development Director
a. Variance Application

i. Discussion & Action

13. Horace HQ, LLC – Liquor License Application I Brenton Holper, City Administrator
a. Discussion & Action

14. Engineering/Public Works Report | Jim Dahlman, City Engineer
a. Construction Project Status

15. City Administrator Report | Brenton Holper, City Administrator
a. Tax Equalization Meeting Reminder (Monday, April 17, 2023 – 5:30 pm at the Horace Fire Hall

Event Center)
b. Road Restrictions for Over Dimensional Vehicles (Starting on April 4, 2023)
c. Easter Event Recap

16. Portfolio Reports
a. Mayor Peterson
b. Councilmember Veit
c. Councilmember Burkland
d. Councilmember Landstrom
e. Councilmember Trudeau

17. Executive session held pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 44-04-19.1(9) to discuss negotiating strategy or provide
negotiating instructions to its attorney or other negotiator regarding contracts for the purchase of real
property related to BNSF railroad property.

a. Executive session
b. Action after executive session

18. Executive session held pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 44-04-19.1(9) to discuss negotiating strategy or provide
negotiating instructions to its attorney or other negotiator regarding contracts for the purchase of real
property related to the Wall Ave Project.

a. Executive session
b. Action after executive session

19. Adjourn

The next City Council Meeting is scheduled for Monday, April 17, 2023, at 6:00 pm 



 

 
 
March 31, 2023 
 
Brenton Holper, City Administrator  
City Of Horace  
215 Park Drive E 
PO Box 99  
Horace, ND 58047-0099 
Via email: bholper@cityofhorace.com 
 

RE:  Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street 
Improvement District No. 2022-11 (Cub 
Creek Second Addition)  
Horace, ND  
ER22-00-137 

 
Dear Mr. Holper: 
 
Attached please find Progressive Estimate No. 3 in the amount of $1,040,080.41 for work performed by 
KPH, INC. regarding the above referenced project.  

This office has prepared the attached estimate and recommends that the City Council approve the same. 
After the progressive estimate has been approved, it should be signed by the Mayor and returned to our 
Horace office for distribution.  

Should you have any questions or require any additional information regarding this matter, do not hesitate 
to contact me at (701) 532-0438. 

 

Yours Very Truly, 
INTERSTATE ENGINEERING, INC.  
 
 
 
 
James A. Dahlman, PE 
JAD/ajh 
 
Attachment  
 
 

KPH Inc. (via email. eric@kphinc.net, office@kphinc.net)  
City of Horace Finance (via email. finance@cityofhorace.com, bpacht@cityofhorace.com) 
 



3-28-2023

PresidentPresident

3/28/2023













































































































































03/31/23                                                   CITY OF HORACE                                       Page: 1 of 9
10:41:49                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100V
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
                Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  4200         999999  WEST WESTERN NATIONAL                  50.00
 surity bond for notary - Matt Voltz
       71064 03/21/23 surety bond for notary                50.00                               100       4151    370          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:         50.00

  4223            272 BUSINESS ESSENTIALS                     70.09
       617834-1 03/23/23 Business Cards- Jace               30.00                               100       4152    410          1130
       618296 03/29/23 Notary Stamp Mike - Claims Sta       40.09                               100       4152    410          1130

  4232            272 BUSINESS ESSENTIALS                     92.62
       618143 03/27/23 Copy Paper                           92.62                               100       4152    410          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        162.71

  4205             42 CASS COUNTY ELECTRIC                 3,642.00
 Street lights
       1172924 03/06/23 106-071-3001                        33.00*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-073-0000                       165.00*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-173-7010                        21.09*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-184-0000                       209.00*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-191-0000                       650.00*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-191-0001                       126.70*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-194-0000                       154.00*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-182-0270                        39.64*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-202-4281                        83.56*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-192-1271                        45.88*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-192-1841                        93.88*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-201-0090                       100.97*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-083-0110                       517.72*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-083-0391                        28.57*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-203-0051                       343.94*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-172-0060                       509.29*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-083-2851                       166.95*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-192-2411                       122.84*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-192-3341                        80.91*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 106-301-1070                        76.93*                              201       4151    351          1130
       1172924 03/06/23 Operation Roundup                    0.73*                              201       4151    351          1130



03/31/23                                                   CITY OF HORACE                                       Page: 2 of 9
10:41:49                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100V
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
                Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
       1172924 03/06/23 Horace Franchise Fee                71.40*                              201       4151    351          1130

  4206             42 CASS COUNTY ELECTRIC                 1,081.98
 Storm water lift stations
       1172938 03/06/23 106-071-3250                       223.12                               502       4151    353          1130
       1172938 03/06/23 106-074-5160                        36.43                               502       4151    353          1130
       1172938 03/06/23 106-184-0791                        53.50                               502       4151    353          1130
       1172938 03/06/23 106-191-2750                        28.61                               502       4151    353          1130
       1172938 03/06/23 106-191-7390                        43.17                               502       4151    353          1130
       1172938 03/06/23 106-182-0271                        73.96                               502       4151    353          1130
       1172938 03/06/23 106-192-0100                       135.00                               502       4151    353          1130
       1172938 03/06/23 106-201-0100                        73.96                               502       4151    353          1130
       1172938 03/06/23 106-171-0030                        83.45                               502       4151    353          1130
       1172938 03/06/23 106-172-0020                        65.92                               502       4151    353          1130
       1172938 03/06/23 106-083-0500                       215.15                               502       4151    353          1130
       1172938 03/06/23 106-082-1180                        28.50                               502       4151    353          1130
       1172938 03/06/23 Horace Franchise Fee                21.21                               502       4151    353          1130

  4207             42 CASS COUNTY ELECTRIC                 1,026.24
 Irrigation
       1172942 03/06/23 106-074-0131                        28.50                               502       4151    353          1130
       1172942 03/06/23 106-191-2510                       595.92                               501       4151    351          1130
       1172942 03/06/23 106-202-0950                       147.91                               100       4151    351          1130
       1172942 03/06/23 106-202-0970                       174.53                               100       4151    351          1130
       1172942 03/06/23 106-071-3002                         0.00                               100       4151    351          1130
       1172942 03/06/23 106-301-0460                        59.25                               502       4151    351          1130
       1172942 03/06/23 Horace Franchise Fee                20.13                               100       4151    351          1130

  4208             42 CASS COUNTY ELECTRIC                 1,781.30
 Sanitary sewer lift stations
       1172940 03/06/23 106-184-0741                       115.83                               502       4151    351          1130
       1172940 03/06/23 106-191-0354                       215.64                               502       4151    351          1130
       1172940 03/06/23 106-191-2500                       115.83                               502       4151    351          1130
       1172940 03/06/23 106-194-2070                        87.91                               502       4151    351          1130
       1172940 03/06/23 106-202-0800                       350.63                               502       4151    351          1130
       1172940 03/06/23 106-183-1370                       321.96                               502       4151    351          1130
       1172940 03/06/23 106-202-4170                        68.05                               502       4151    351          1130



03/31/23                                                   CITY OF HORACE                                       Page: 3 of 9
10:41:49                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100V
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
                Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
       1172940 03/06/23 106-192-1840                        90.21                               502       4151    351          1130
       1172940 03/06/23 106-172-0100                       164.84                               502       4151    351          1130
       1172940 03/06/23 106-203-0050                        81.88                               502       4151    351          1130
       1172940 03/06/23 106-083-1990                        79.99                               502       4151    351          1130
       1172940 03/06/23 106-301-2000                        53.60                               502       4151    351          1130
       1172940 03/06/23 Horace Franchise Fee                34.93                               502       4151    351          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      7,531.52

  4225             49 CASS RURAL WATER USERS                 131.92
 11/29 - 12/28
       12650 04/10/23 8501 Memory Lane                      27.00                               501       4152    452          1130
       13948 04/10/23 Visto Industrial Pit                 104.92                               501       4152    452          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        131.92

  4231             55 CINTAS                                 124.11
       4150655303 03/28/23 Floor Mats - City Hall          124.11                               100       4151    381          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        124.11

  4201             56 CITY OF FARGO                           70.00
       436167 03/15/23 Wastewater Lab Testing               70.00                               502       4152    431          1130
         Health Water Samples                                0.00                               501       4152    431          1130

  4221             56 CITY OF FARGO                           70.00
       436405 03/22/23 Wastewater Lab Testing               70.00                               502       4152    431          1130
       436405 03/22/23 Health Water Samples                  0.00                               501       4152    431          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        140.00

  4229            457 DRN READITECH                        1,615.23
       2737600 04/01/23 Managed Services -4/1/23 - 4/    1,400.25                               100       4151    317          1130
       2737600 04/01/23 Telephone & Internet               214.98                               100       4151    356          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      1,615.23

  4163             88 FASTENAL                               162.25
       274727 02/22/23 Dolly for DEF                        78.65                     Doug      501       4152    421          1130
       276086 03/22/23 supplies                             83.60                               501       4152    421          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        162.25



03/31/23                                                   CITY OF HORACE                                       Page: 4 of 9
10:41:49                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100V
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
                Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  4196            478 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES LLC #3326       2,975.96
       233189 03/09/23 20-36 multisize test plug         2,975.96*                              501       4153    641          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      2,975.96

  4192            375 HORACE FIRE DISTRICT                 2,455.15
 March 2023 10% share of state aid
       10%Mar23 03/21/23 Rev. Share/State Aid            2,455.15                               100       4154    770          1130

  4228            375 HORACE FIRE DISTRICT                   900.00
 .Monthly rental fire hall (6 meetings @$150) per agreement / additional meetings
  $150

       3-28 03/28/23 Monthly Fire Hall Rent March          900.00                               100       4151    319          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      3,355.15

  4191            105 HORACE PARK DISTRICT                 2,455.15
 March 2023 10% share of state aid
       10%Mar23 03/21/23 Rev. Share/State Aid            2,455.15                               100       4154    770          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      2,455.15

  4222            106 HORACE SENIOR CENTER                   200.00
 Horace 150th
       032423 03/24/23 Rental of Senior Center             200.00                               100       4152    461          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        200.00

  4214            116 INTERSTATE ENGINEERING             516,169.17
       50278 03/23/23 2022-8 66th 76th Ave-64th Ave    516,169.17*                              481       4319    315          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:    516,169.17

  4195            507 Jesse Knutson                          147.50
 Meals for Training
       travel1001 03/22/23 Code Seminars and Consulti      147.50                               100       4151    344          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        147.50



03/31/23                                                   CITY OF HORACE                                       Page: 5 of 9
10:41:49                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100V
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
                Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  4230            358 KEITH ASHEIM                           147.50
       NDBOA 03/28/23 Travel Per Diem NDBOASpring23        147.50                               100       4151    341          1130
 03/15/23-03/17/23
                                     Total for Vendor:        147.50

  4211            579 LOCATORS & SUPPLIES, Inc             2,992.87
       305752 03/27/23 Marking Paint                     1,496.44                               501       4152    421          1130
       305752 03/27/23 Marking Paint                     1,496.43*                              502       4152    421          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      2,992.87

  4233            145 MARCO TECHNOLOGIES LLC                 422.24
       496903485 03/17/23 Copier Lease & Overage           422.24                               100       4151    332          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        422.24

  4226            365 MIDWEST INSPECTION SERVICES          2,520.00
       1855 03/21/23 Building Code Support               2,520.00                               100       4151    314          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      2,520.00

  4202            181 OHNSTAD TWICHELL PC                 13,363.48
       187791 02/21/23 2021-1  2023 RIB POS.               187.50*                              467       4319    312          1130
       187792 02/21/23 2021-2 Legal services               890.00*                              468       4319    312          1130
       187793 02/21/23 2021-3  2023 RIB POS                225.00*                              469       4319    312          1130
       187794 02/21/23 2020-6  Legal Services              641.50*                              465       4319    312          1130
       187795 02/21/23 2020-7  Review HH letter            487.50*                              465       4319    312          1130
       187796 02/21/23 2021-5  2023 RIB POS                187.50*                              471       4319    312          1130
       187797 02/21/23 2022-2  2023 RIB POS                187.50*                              475       4319    312          1130
       187799 02/21/23 General 2023                      6,860.50                               100       4151    312          1130
       187800 02/21/23 Variance/CUP Appl 2023              117.50                               100       4151    312          1130
       187801 02/21/23 Municipal Court 2023                658.00                               100       4151    312          1130
       187802 02/21/23 2023 Legislative Session          1,227.50                               100       4151    312          1130
       187803 02/21/23 Professional Services             1,178.00                               100       4151    312          1130
       187804 02/21/23 BNSF Land Acquisition               188.00                               100       4151    312          1130
       187805 02/21/23 Rezone and CUP 7675 Jacks Way       327.48                               100       4151    312          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:     13,363.48



03/31/23                                                   CITY OF HORACE                                       Page: 6 of 9
10:41:49                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100V
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
                Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  4238            182 ONE CALL CONCEPTS                      158.05
       2124172 12/31/22 121 @1.30/1@1.30/1@ .55)           158.05                   Adam        501       4151    310          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:        158.05

  4194            188 PETRO SERVE USA                      2,092.82
 Diesel
       7171 03/20/23 Diesel                              2,092.82                               201       4151    385          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      2,092.82

  4213            581 SIGN SOLUTIONS                       4,180.50
       8102 03/21/23 street signs                        3,802.74                               100       4152    445          1130
       405425 03/29/23 street signs                        377.76                               100       4152    445          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:      4,180.50

  4215            219 STARION BOND SERVICES              202,933.75
 City of Horace, North Dakota
 $3,590,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds

 2015
       RIB2015 03/06/23 2014-1 Dreamfields Principal    50,756.16*                              333       7610    710          1130
       RIB2015 03/06/23 2014-1 Dreamfield Interest      13,427.73*                              333       7610    720          1130
       1059 03/06/23 2014-1 Dreamfield Fees                191.92*                              333       7610    730          1130
       RIB2015 03/06/23 2015-1 52nd Principal            3,342.64*                              334       7610    710          1130
       RIB2015 03/06/23 2015-1 52nd Interest               884.31*                              334       7610    720          1130
       1059 03/06/23 2015-1 52nd Fees                       12.64*                              334       7610    730          1130
       RIB2015 03/06/23 2015-2 Prairie View Principal  105,901.24*                              335       7610    710          1130
       RIB2015 03/06/23 2015-2 Prairie View Interest    28,016.67*                              335       7610    720          1130
       1059 03/06/23 2015-2 Prarie View Fees               400.44*                              335       7610    730          1130

  4216            219 STARION BOND SERVICES              895,807.50
 City of Horace, North Dakota
 $20,575,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds

 Series 2020B
       RIB2020B 03/06/23 2019-1 Lakeview Dr Principal  140,300.00*                              347       7610    710          1130
       1063 03/06/23 2019-1 Lakeview Dr Interest        65,680.95*                              347       7610    720          1130
       RIB2020B 03/06/23 2019-1 Lakeview Dr Fees           162.15*                              347       7610    730          1130
       1063 03/06/23 2019-2 76th Roundabout Princip     98,820.00*                              348       7610    710          1130



03/31/23                                                   CITY OF HORACE                                       Page: 7 of 9
10:41:49                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100V
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
                Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
       RIB2020B 03/06/23 2019-2 76th Roundabout Inter   46,142.96*                              348       7610    461          1130
       1063 03/06/23 2019-2 76th Roundabout Fees           114.21*                              348       7610    730          1130
       RIB2020B 03/06/23 2019-3 63rd ST Principal       70,150.00*                              349       7610    710          1130
       1063 03/06/23 2019-3 63rd St Interest            32,840.48*                              349       7610    720          1130
       RIB2020B 03/06/23 2019-3 63rd ST Fees                81.08*                              349       7610    730          1130
       1063 03/06/23 2019-5 Visto Indust Principal      72,590.00*                              350       7610    710          1130
       RIB2020B 03/06/23 2019-5 Visto Indust Principa   33,879.74*                              350       7610    720          1130
       1063 03/06/23 2019-5 Visto Indust Principal          83.90*                              350       7610    730          1130
       RIB2020B 03/06/23 2019-6 Cub Creek Principal    228,140.00*                              351       7610    710          1130
       1063 03/06/23 2019-6 Cub Creek Principal        106,558.36*                              351       7610    720          1130
       RIB2020B 03/06/23 2019-6 Cub Creek Principal        263.67*                              351       7610    730          1130

  4217            219 STARION BOND SERVICES               22,466.25
 City of Horace, North Dakota
 $450,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds

 2018
       RIB2018 03/06/23 2015-3 73rd paving Principal     4,666.50*                              339       7610    710          1130
       RIB2018 03/06/23 2015-3 73rd paving Interest      2,134.61*                              339       7610    720          1130
       1061 03/06/23 2015-3 73rd paving Fees               188.22*                              339       7610    730          1130
       RIB2018 03/06/23 2016-2 Arrowwood 2nd Principa   10,333.50*                              340       7610    710          1130
       RIB2018 03/06/23 2016-2 Arrowwood 2nd Interest    4,726.64*                              340       7610    720          1130
       1061 03/06/03 2016-2 Arrowwood 2nd Fees             416.78*                              340       7610    730          1130

  4218            219 STARION BOND SERVICES              182,395.00
 City of Horace North Dakota
 $3,885,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds

 Series 2018B
       RIB2018B 03/06/23 2017-7 Maple Grove Principal    9,027.50*                              344       7610    710          1130
       RIB2018B 03/06/23 2017-7 Maple Grove Interest     5,235.64*                              344       7610    720          1130
       1062 03/06/23 2017-7 Maple Grove Fees                55.34*                              344       7610    730          1130
       RIB2018B 03/06/23 2017-8 Northwood Principal      7,406.00*                              345       7610    710          1130
       RIB2021B 03/06/23 2017-8 Northwood Interst        4,291.51*                              345       7610    720          1130
       1062 03/06/23 2017-8 Northwood Fees                  45.40*                              345       7610    730          1130
       RIB2018B 03/06/23 2018-3 Terra Gardens Princip   98,566.50*                              346       7610    710          1130
       RIB2018B 03/06/23 2018-3 Terra Gardens Princip   57,162.85*                              346       7610    720          1130
       1062 03/06/23 2018-3 Terra Gardens Principal        604.26*                              346       7610    730          1130



03/31/23                                                   CITY OF HORACE                                       Page: 8 of 9
10:41:49                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100V
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
                Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  4219            219 STARION BOND SERVICES              287,927.50
 City of Horace, North Dakota
 $5,875,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds

 2017
       RIB2017 03/06/23 2017-1 Lost River1&2 Principa  195,000.00*                              343       7610    710          1130
       RIB2017 03/06/23 2017-1 Lost River1&2 interest   92,222.50*                              343       7610    720          1130
       1060 03/06/23 2017-1 Lost River1&2 fees             705.00*                              343       7610    730          1130

  4220            219 STARION BOND SERVICES             1052,555.00
 City of Horace, North Dakota
 $24,540,000 Refunding Improvement Bonds

 Series 2021
 HORACEREF2021
       RIB2021 03/06/23 2018-1 100th Sewer Principal    24,633.00*                              352       7610    710          1130
       RIB2021 03/06/23 2018-1 100th Sewer Interest     12,902.15*                              352       7610    720          1130
       1064 03/06/23 2018-1 100th Sewer Fees                25.17*                              352       7610    730          1130
       RIB2021 03/06/23 2019-7 Maple Lakes Principal   174,156.00*                              353       7610    710          1130
       RIB2021 03/06/23 2019-7 Maple Lakes Interest     91,347.22*                              353       7610    720          1130
       1064 03/06/23 2019-7 Maple Lakes fees               177.94*                              353       7610    730          1130
       RIB2021 03/06/23 2020-1 Southdale 1st Principa  212,865.00*                              354       7610    710          1130
       RIB2021 03/06/23 2020-1 Southdale 1st Interest  111,622.03*                              354       7610    720          1130
       1064 03/06/23 2020-1 Southdale 1st Fees             217.49*                              354       7610    730          1130
       RIB2021 03/06/23 2020-2 82nd St Principal        80,109.00*                              355       7610    710          1130
       RIB2021 03/06/23 2020-2 82nd St Interest         42,024.14*                              355       7610    720          1130
       1064 03/06/23 2020-2 82nd St Fees                    81.85*                              355       7610    730          1130
       RIB2021 03/06/23 2020-4 Lost River 5th Princip  198,237.00*                              356       7610    710          1130
       RIB2021 03/06/23 2020-4 Lost River 5th Interes  103,954.46*                              356       7610    720          1130
       1064 03/06/23 2020-4 Lost River 5th Fees            202.55*                              356       7610    730          1130
                                     Total for Vendor:   2644,085.00

  4209            227 SWANSTON EQUIPMENT                       0.00
       088187 03/23/23 Antifreeze                           52.74                               201       4152    421          1130
       p86955 01/30/23 12 PC. Gutter Broom-Street Swe      -52.74                               201       4151    381          1130
 CI     31



03/31/23                                                   CITY OF HORACE                                       Page: 9 of 9
10:41:49                                                Claim Approval List                                Report ID: AP100V
                                                  For the Accounting Period:  3/23

    *  ... Over spent expenditure

————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————
Claim/  Check           Vendor #/Name/               Document $/     Disc $                                                   Cash
                Invoice #/Inv Date/Description         Line $                          PO #    Fund Org Acct   Object  Proj  Account
————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————————

  4224            227 SWANSTON EQUIPMENT                       0.00
       W38514 03/24/23 War work Skid Steer antifreeze      286.75*                              201       4151    382          1130
       p86955 01/30/23 12 PC. Gutter Broom-Street Swe     -286.75                               201       4151    381          1130
 CI     31
                                     Total for Vendor:          0.00
                                       # of Claims    36      Total: 3205,183.13      # of Vendors    24



As of: 3/27/2023

Prepared for: 

3/27/2023 2/27/2023 Variance

NonInterest Bearing Balances -                           -                            -                       
FDIC Insurance 250,000.00             250,000.00              
Uninsured NonInterest Bearing* -                           -                            -                       

Interest Bearing Balances 4,487,199.19         4,483,878.30           3,320.89              
FDIC Insurance 250,000.00             250,000.00              
Uninsured Interest Bearing* 4,237,199.19         4,233,878.30           3,320.89              

*Total Uninsured Deposits 4,237,199.19         4,233,878.30           3,320.89              
X 110% 4,660,919.11         4,657,266.13           3,652.98              

Pledged Securities (Market Value) 5,988,966.37         5,244,257.35           744,709.02         
Pledge Changes in Process

Pledge Excess (Shortage) 1,328,047.26         586,991.22              741,056.04         

Pledge Report

City of Horace

Thank you for banking with Starion Bank!  If you have any questions on this pledge 
report, please email financialoperations@starionbank.com. 



Pledges By Pledgee And Maturity

Starion Bank - Mandan, ND

Original Face
Original Face Par Book Value Market Value

Receipt#
Safekeeping Location

As Of 3/31/2023 Page 56 of 64

BBAPledged To: CITY OF HORACE

CUSIP Description
Maturity Prerefund Pledged Percent

Pledged
Moody

S&P
Pool/Type

Coupon
ASC 320

 111,920.66 116,283.75 112,631.33 1,500,000.00% 100.00WELL: WELLS FARGO
G14675FHLMC  15YR3128MDMY6

 4.0008/01/27
 1,500,000.00AFS

 455,574.32 475,561.59 476,560.29 2,650,000.00% 100.00WELL: WELLS FARGO
AS4952FNMA  15YR3138WEQE2

 3.0005/01/30
 2,650,000.00AFS

 1,217,635.38 1,496,815.94 1,500,000.00 1,500,000.00% 100.00WELL: WELLS FARGO
WN2072FR WN20723132XGJS6

 1.2110/01/30
 1,500,000.00AFS

 1,546,314.66 1,765,176.24 1,679,623.71 1,900,000.00% 100.00WELL: WELLS FARGO
FHR 5154 DV3137H2XY5

 2.5002/25/33
 1,900,000.00AFS

 279,990.90 317,381.41 315,000.00 315,000.00% 100.00WELL: WELLS FARGO
Aa2LISBON PUB SD#19 ND 33536435EM8

 2.0008/01/33
 315,000.00AFS

 295,290.20 410,000.00 410,000.00 410,000.00% 100.00WELL: WELLS FARGO
Aa2MINOT -C -TXBL -REF ND 34604366EG5

 1.6510/01/34
 410,000.00AFS

 1,015,380.73 1,157,190.11 1,093,956.07 1,550,000.00% 100.00WELL: WELLS FARGO
FM5801FNMA  15YR3140X9NT8

 2.5001/01/36
 1,550,000.00AFS

 27,353.09 27,852.03 27,686.85 1,000,000.00% 100.00WELL: WELLS FARGO
FHR 4012 JK3137AMNN3

 3.5012/15/40
 1,000,000.00AFS

 58,450.83 60,509.08 59,519.76 1,050,000.00% 100.00WELL: WELLS FARGO
FNR 2013-117 PA3136AGY30

 4.0002/25/43
 1,050,000.00AFS

 981,055.60 1,058,798.99 1,033,041.34 3,266,735.00% 100.00WELL: WELLS FARGO
FHR 4717 PA3137FB5K8

 3.0004/15/45
 3,266,735.00AFS

 15,141,735.00  6,708,019.35  6,885,569.14  5,988,966.37519 - CITY OF HORACE10 Securities Pledged To:

Although the information in this report has been obtained from sources 
believed to be reliable, its accuracy cannot be guaranteed.

970 The Baker Group Software Solutions, Inc.3/28/2023  3:34 PM - JHK / BISM

BBA - Baker Bond Accounting ®

970





  2 

ROUTE IMPACT: Drain 50 Inlet, Utility Relocation, and Culvert Access 
 

Use Request 
 

ASN is requesting use of the following roadways to access work areas while minimizing impacts 
to the surrounding property. If access to these roadways is not available, the alternative option 
would be to construct a 1-mile-long access road from County Road 14 Southeast through the 
Diversion Project Right of Way to the Sheyenne River. This roadway would split numerous 
parcels of land and potentially negatively impact existing farm access to these fields as well as 
the existing drainage patterns in the area. See “Figure 1 - Proposed Route 1” on Page 4 for a 
map of the request. 
 

Segment 1: 81st Street South 
 

Existing Conditions 
 

• Distance (Outside of Project ROW):  

o 0.52 miles 

• Existing Road Width: 

o 17 ft 

• Existing Road Surface:  

o Aggregate Surface 

• Structures and load limits:  

o N/A  

• Residences Adjacent to Proposed Route: 3 (with associated farm structures) 

o 300-800 feet Southwest of 46th Street SE and 81st Street S intersection 

Proposed Usage 
 

• Vehicle Type: Heavy construction equipment to construct drain inlet, culverts, and utility 
relocations (dozers, scrapers, excavators, tractors, trucks, etc.) 

• Expected Vehicles Per Day: Daily traffic should be light except for days that trucks are 
hauling aggregate or concrete to the site. 

• Estimated Start/Finish: Upon Approval through 10/31/2026 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  3 

ASN Proposed Responsibilities 
 

• Dust control for the first 0.2 miles South of 46th Street SE for residences adjacent to the 

project route. 

• Respect and maintain roads to existing conditions. 

o Roadway surface grading 

o Repair of rutting 

o Stabilization of construction entrances to prevent track out. If track out occurs, 

ASN will be responsible for cleanup. 

• Current road usage by landowners, farmers, residents, etc. will not be impacted. 

  



  4 

Diagrams 
 

 
 

Figure 1 - Proposed Route 1 



  5 

By signing this proposal, the City of Horace authorizes ASN Constructors to proceed with the usage 
of the roads herein described. 
 
This proposal is accepted and agreed on    ______________________. 
 

Per:   City of Horace 

   

 

Brenton Holper, City Administrator 

Print Name & Title  Signature 
 

 
 
 



 

 

 
Horace City Council Meeting Minutes  
The Horace City Council met on March 20, 2023 @ 6:00 pm at the Horace Fire Hall Event Center. Those 
present were Mayor Kory Peterson, Councilmembers Sarah Veit, Stephanie Landstrom, Naomi 
Burkland, and Jeff Trudeau. Others present included: Brenton Holper, City Administrator; Jace Hellman, 
Community Development Director; James Dahlman, City Engineer; Matt Voltz, Finance Director; and 
Lukas Croaker, City Attorney.  
 
Mayor Peterson called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm.  
The pledge of allegiance was recited. 
 
Agenda Item #3: Approve Regular Agenda  
Motion: Approve the Regular Agenda.  
1st Motion: Councilmember Veit 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Agenda Item #4: Approve Consent Agenda  

a. Vendor Invoices 
b. Balance Sheet & Income Statement    
c. Checks Written in February 2023 
d. Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street Improvement District No. 2022-11 (Cub Creek Second 

Addition) 
i. Reimbursement of Geotechnical Engineering Services to Dabbert Custom Homes 

Motion: Approve the Consent Agenda. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Burkland 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Agenda Item #5: Approval of City Council Meeting Minutes from March 6, 2023.  
Motion: Approve the March 6, 2023, City Council Meeting Minutes.  
1st Motion: Councilmember Trudeau 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Agenda Item #6: Public Comment 
Horace resident Mike Snellgrove wanted to make sure that the City Council had received his email 
correspondence and he also wanted to introduce himself. The councilmembers said that they had 
received his email and the City will get back to him.  
 
Agenda Item # 7: Sheriff’s Update | Craig Keller & Jake Murray, Cass County Sheriff’s Department 
Deputy Sheriff Keller explained that the February 2023 and the 2022 annual reports will be presented. 
The City Council discussed the traffic concerns around Horace Elementary School. Everyone agreed that 
solutions are needed soon. Councilmember Trudeau relayed a message from a local establishment 
asking if the sheriffs could refrain from sitting outside their business during nights. Deputy Keller 
responded that he would continue to patrol the area because that is where the most problems occur. 
He added that the business owner is more than welcome to speak with him directly. 



 

 

 
Deputy Keller summarized the annual report and stated that many of the statistical numbers from 2021 
to 2022 remained relatively the same. The one notable difference was the increase in burglaries. Many 
of the burglaries were crimes of opportunity to the many construction sites within the city. Mayor 
Peterson noted that the number of traffic accidents did not increase by much either.  
 
Deputy Keller added that he is working for the City of Horace for the third year and that he applied to 
stay another two years which was approved.  
 
Agenda Item #8: Wall Avenue Purchase Agreements | Lukas Croaker, City Attorney 
Mr. Croaker presented four purchase agreements for the Wall Ave. project and explained that the 
City Council needs to approve the agreements. He added that the values in the purchase 
agreements were the original values that were listed in the appraisal report with the tree 
replacement policy compensation included.  
Motion: Approve Four Purchase Agreements with Values from the Tree Policy and Appraisal Report.  
1st Motion: Councilmember Veit 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Burkland 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Agenda Item # 9: Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street Improvement District No. 2022-8 (66th Street) | Jim 
Dahlman, City Engineer 
Mr. Dahlman explained that the City received six bids for the Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street 
Improvement District No. 2022-8 (66th Street) project. He said that the lowest bidder was KPH, Inc. of 
Fargo, ND with a bid of $7,303,656.15.  
 
KPH Inc. provided information for review in accordance with the City of Horace Responsible Bidder 
Policy. Mr. Dahlman recommended awarding the 2022-8 construction contract to KPH, Inc. The 
estimated construction start date is April 24, 2023, and the estimated completion date is October 28, 
2023.  
Motion: Award the Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street Improvement District No. 2022-8 (66th Street) Project 
to the Lowest Responsible Bidder KPH, Inc.  
1st Motion: Councilmember Trudeau 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 

 
Agenda Item # 10: Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street Improvement District No. 2023-1 (Southdale 
Farms Sixth Addition) | Jim Dahlman, City Engineer 
Mr. Dahlman stated that the City of Horace received a petition for improvements submitted by HS 
Investments, LLC requesting infrastructure improvements for the development known as Southdale 
Farms Sixth Addition. The developer requested that the infrastructure improvements be paid for by 
special assessments. He pointed out that the special assessments for this project will only be local not 
regional. Mr. Dahlman presented the project’s district boundary map. 
Motion: Approve the Petition for Improvements for the Southdale Farms 6th Addition. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Veit 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Trudeau  
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 



 

 

Mr. Dahlman explained that the next step would be creating the assessment district for the project. 
Motion: Accept Creating the District Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street Improvement District No. 2023-1. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Veit 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Trudeau  
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Mr. Dahlman concluded that the City Council would need to approve the resolution directing the 
engineer to prepare the preliminary engineering report for the project.  
Motion: Approve the Resolution Directing the Engineer to prepare the Preliminary Engineering Report 
for the Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street Improvement District No. 2023-1. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Veit 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Trudeau  
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Agenda Item # 11: Sewer Ordinance | Jim Dahlman, City Engineer 
Mr. Dahlman said that the City of Horace does not have a sewer ordinance. Responsibility for 
repairs was a recent topic during City Council meetings, and without an ordinance in place, a 
decision to reimburse the homeowner for repairs was made. The City Council requested that City 
staff prepare a sewer ordinance that establishes the procedure and cost for connection to sewer 
lines in the City of Horace, sets the monthly charges for sewer service, and sets out the City’s and 
customer’s responsibilities for repairs to sewer lines. The proposed sewer ordinance was reviewed 
by the legal, engineering, public works, and administrative departments.  

Councilmember Landstrom voiced concern about forcing residents who are currently on septic tanks 
onto the City’s sewer system, and she stated that some of the language in the proposed ordinance will 
need to be revised. She added that she is not interested in forcing anyone to connect. Mr. Croaker 
explained that this ordinance will follow North Dakota law and that it may not be up to the City to 
regulate connection to the City’s public sewer. He added that this is only the first reading of the 
proposed ordinance and that changes can be made before the second reading. Councilmember 
Landstrom stated that she would like to make changes. 

The City Council discussed whether the City would ever force anyone to connect. Mayor Peterson 
stated that the State’s Public Health Department could also come in and request homeowners connect 
to the public sewer system. Councilmember Landstrom said that an established resident should not be 
forced to connect by the City and that the State or Cass County Public Health Department should be the 
ones dealing with this. She concluded that an ordinance forcing property owners to connect to the 
sewer system is anti-resident, in her opinion. The City Council continued to discuss the ordinance, 
including time frames for when a property owner would have to connect and who should pay for the 
connection fee. The City Council agreed that the language about time frames regarding the connection 
would have to be revised. Mr. Croaker said that he would review the Health Department’s timelines. 
Mayor Peterson proposed tabling the item until the rewording of the ordinance process was 
complete.   

Agenda Item # 12: 7675 Jacks Way | Jace Hellman, Community Development Director 
Mr. Hellman presented the rezone and conditional use permit applications for 7675 Jacks Way, which is for a 
new gas station and car wash located on the southeast corner of 76th Ave. S. and County Road 17. He 
explained that the applicant is requesting to rezone the property from its current zoning district of C-2 



 

 

to C-1. A portion of the property in question was previously zoned C-1, but with the platting and 
rezoning of Lakeview Heights 5th Addition, the replat/redrawn property was zoned C-2. 
 
Staff noted that the process of issuing a conditional use permit involves making sure that proposed 
uses do not pose an impact to neighboring properties, and that the proposed uses would be compatible 
with their surroundings. It also allows the decision-making bodies of the City to apply additional 
conditions of approval to ensure impacts are limited. The nature in which a conditional use permit 
should be reviewed and approved is to ensure that surrounding uses are not impacted or diminished by 
the establishment of a use that requires a conditional use permit. 
 
Mayor Peterson opened the public hearing at 6:47 pm for the rezone and conditional use permit. 
Councilmember Burkland asked why the zoning was changed from C-1 to C-2. Mr. Hellman explained 
that when the Lakeview Heights 5th Addition was added, the zoning was changed and that it needed to 
be changed back to conform to the City’s ordinance. The ordinance states that a conditional use permit 
shall not be located less than two hundred (200) feet from a residential district within the C-2 zone. Mr. 
Hellman stated that a C-1 zoning does not have such restrictions. Mr. Holper explained that he 
discussed the rezone application with one property owner who is the only one within the 200-ft 
restriction. The property owner did not express any concerns.  
 
Councilmember Veit asked the applicant, Mr. Woodside, about direct access from County Road 17 and 
that the only access to the gas station would be from 76th Ave. S. Mr. Woodside stated that there is 
only one access road, which is from 76th Ave. S. Councilmember Trudeau and Councilmember Burkland 
voiced concern about the detached car wash and the visual aesthetics it would have on County Road 
17. Mr. Hellman explained that if the City Council were to approve the rezone and conditional use 
permit, the applicant would still need to go through a design review, which must be approved by the 
Planning Commission before the applicant can apply for a building permit. The City Council discussed 
the private road and the access to and from the gas station. No further comments were received, and 
Mayor Peterson closed the public hearings at 7:02 pm.  
 
Councilmember Trudeau asked about shielding the car wash visually by planting vegetation. He voiced 
concern that the shrubs or bushes that would be planted to hide the structure from County Road 17 
would need to be replaced every year because of heavy salt usage on the roundabout during the winter 
months. He would prefer that the gas station’s store be the focal point, not the car wash. He said that if 
the car wash is being shielded by plants, a provision would be added to the conditional use permit. 
Councilmembers Trudeau and Burkland both stated that they do not want the car wash visible from 
County Road 17.  
Mr. Hellman suggested that a special condition regarding the car wash could be added to the motion 
for the conditional use permit. Mr. Woodside said that he prefers the car wash to be attached to the 
main building. He also voiced concern about light pollution from vehicles facing County Road 17 if the 
garage is detached from the building.  
 
Mr. Woodside explained that if the car wash were attached to the main building, the light pollution 
from headlights would not be an issue. The reason for not being able to attach the car wash is the 
location of the Minnkota Power Cooperative easement. Mr. Woodside concluded that he would talk to 
Minnkota Power Cooperative to see if he would be able to buy a few feet of the easement from them. 
Councilmember Burkland said that she is very worried about the light pollution adding an additional  



 

 

danger to drivers who have to deal with a slippery roundabout during the winter and constant traffic 
going in and out of the gas station.  
 
Mr. Holper suggested that the motion include the following provisions: The applicant must provide 
screening to mitigate headlights shining onto County Road 17. He explained that the emphasis would 
be on mitigation which means breaking up the light pollution. The applicant must also ensure that the 
car wash’s location is no longer on County Road 17. Lastly, the applicant must provide sidewalks.  
 
Motion: Approve the First Reading of the Rezone for 7675 Jacks Way as Presented by Staff. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Veit 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Trudeau  
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Motion: Approve the Conditional Use Permit for 7675 Jacks Way as Presented by Staff with the Provisions 
that the Applicant Provides Sidewalks, Mitigates Light Pollution, and Moves the Car Wash off County Road 
17. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Veit  
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Agenda Item # 13: Rezone Amendments | Jace Hellman, Community Development Director 
Mr. Hellman explained he is currently working on a new zoning map and that once all the rezone 
amendments have been approved, the map will be up to date. The rezone amendments for Terra 
Gardens 3rd Addition, Cub Creek 2nd Addition and River’s Edge 2nd Addition were presented. 
Motion: Approve the Terra Gardens 3rd Addition Rezone Amendment. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Veit 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Burkland 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Motion: Approve the Cub Creek 2nd Addition R Rezone Amendment. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Veit 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Trudeau 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Motion: Approve the River’s Edge 2nd Addition R Rezone Amendment. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Veit 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 

 
Agenda Item # 14: Land Use Ordinance | Jace Hellman, Community Development Director 
Mr. Hellman gave a quick update on the new Land Use Ordinance. He asked that the City Council 
read the Land Use Ordinance to provide comments, suggestions, or revisions. He added that a 
public comment section will be added in the next two weeks. He would like the public to be able to 
review the Land Use Ordinance and provide comments. He estimated that the Land Use Ordinance 
would be adopted sometime in July.  
 
Agenda Item # 15: Engineering/Public Works Report | Jim Dahlman, City Engineer 



 

 

Mr. Dahlman gave a quick status update on current construction. He added that due to the weather, not 
many activities were currently happening. He explained that the Cass County Highway Department had 
their first pre-construction meeting regarding the 64th Ave. S. roundabout. Cass County asked to schedule 
a public information meeting in Horace to inform residents about the construction of the roundabout. Mr. 
Holper stressed that this project is a County project, not a City project. 
 
Agenda Item # 16: City Administrator Report | Brenton Holper, City Administrator 
Mr. Holper reminded everyone about the upcoming Easter event that will take place on April 1, 2023, at 
Horace Lutheran Church starting at 2:00 pm. Staff will advertise online about the event, also disburse 
flyers and posters in the school and daycares in the area.  
Mr. Holper explained that the next tax equalization meeting will take place on Monday, April 17, 2023, 
at 5:30 pm at the Horace Fire Hall Event Center. Cass County Finance Director, Paul Fracassi, will lead 
the meeting and will be available for questions after the meeting. 
Mr. Holper mentioned that homeowners are responsible for clearing the snow around mailboxes. 
He completed his update by stating that the pricing for the refinancing improvement bonds was 
completed last week and came in at 4.9984665% which is a very good rate.  
 
Agenda Item # 17: Portfolio Reports 

a. Mayor Peterson reminded residents that fire hydrants need to be cleared of snow. Fire 
hydrants need to be visible at all times. 
He explained that staff are watching the snow-water equivalency to see if the area will 
face potential flooding when the snow starts to melt. He added that the current 
measurements are still below last year’s numbers. He concluded that the staff would 
continue to keep an eye on it.   

b. Councilmember Veit requested that the construction trucks coming and going to the Cub 
Creek 2nd Addition need to keep the mud and dirt off 63rd St.   

c. Councilmember Burkland asked staff about an update on the video system installation. Mr. 
Holper said that the needed electrical lines were installed, the internet was upgraded but 
that Tricorn Audio was waiting for equipment that was on back order.  

d. Councilmember Landstrom said that she continues to work on the preparation for the 150th 
anniversary celebrations.  

e. Councilmember Trudeau explained that he has attended several MetroCOG meetings to find 
a replacement for the Executive Director. He added that an offer was recently made to one 
of the applicants.  
Councilmember Trudeau concluded that the City will conduct several interviews for the 
currently open positions at the City.  

 
Mayor Peterson asked for a 5-minute break at 7:45 pm. He also requested that the room be cleared so 
that the executive session can be entered. A resident asked the City Council to consider that residents 
on Wall Avenue be given more time to find appraisers and contractors. Councilmembers Landstrom 
and Burkland said that they will take their concerns into account.   

 
Agenda Item # 18: Executive session held pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 44-04-19.1(9) to discuss negotiating 
strategy or provide negotiating instructions to its attorney or other negotiator regarding contracts for 
the purchase of real property related to the Wall Ave Project.  
Motion: Enter into Executive Session held pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 44-04-19.1(9) to discuss negotiating 



 

 

strategy or provide negotiating instructions to its attorney or other negotiator regarding contracts for 
the purchase of real property related to the Wall Ave Project at 7:50 pm. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Burkland 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Veit 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 
Motion: Return to the Regular Session at 8:35 pm.  
1st Motion: Councilmember Burkland 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried.  
 
Motion: Accept Counter Offers Related to the Wall Ave Project by the End of Day on Friday, March 24th, 
2023. Direct Staff to Organize an Executive Session during a City Council Special Meeting on Monday, 
March 27, 2023, at 6:00 pm at City Hall.   
1st Motion: Councilmember Burkland 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried.  
 
Agenda Item # 19: Adjourn 
Motion: Adjourn at 8:38 pm. 
1st Motion: Councilmember Landstrom 
2nd Motion: Councilmember Burkland 
Action taken: All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried. 
 

The next City Council Meeting is scheduled for Monday, April 3, 2023, at 6:00 pm 
 



 

 

MEMO 
 
To:  Horace City Council 
  (Via email:  Bholper@cityofhorace.com)   
 
From:  James Dahlman, PE 
 
Date:  March 31, 2023 
 
Re:  Sanitary, Storm and Street Improvement District No. 2022-4 
  (Wall Ave-Sheyenne Diversion to Sheyenne River Bridge)  
  Plans and Specifications 
  Horace, North Dakota 
  W21-00-177 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Please find an example plan sheet attached for the above referenced project. 
 
This is being presented for your information, review, and comments. 
 
The anticipated project schedule is: 

• April 3, 2023  - approve plans and specifications. 
• April 12, 2023 - advertise in the paper. 
• April 19, 2023 - advertise in the paper. 
• April 26, 2023 - advertise in the paper.  
• May 4, 2023  - open bids.  
• September 2, 2023 - Milestone 1substantial completion  
• July 13, 2024  - Milestone 1final completion. 
• August 31, 2024 - Milestone 2 substantial completion 
• September 14, 2024 - Milestone 2 final completion. 

Milestone 1 consists of Wall Avenue from the Memory Lane/Lost River Road intersection to the Sheyenne 
River Bridge.  Substantial completion includes the underground utilities and street portion of the project.  
Shared Use Path, sidewalk and plantings will be included in Milestone 1 final completion. 
 
Milestone 2 consists of Wall Avenue from near the Sheyenne River Diversion to the Memory Lane/Lost River 
Road intersection.  
I recommend: 

1. Approve the plans and specifications. 
2. Direct the auditor to advertise for bids. 

 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (701) 532-0438. 
 

           Jad



N

APPROVED:

                                                                               .BY:

INTERSTATE ENGINEERING, INC.

PROJECT ENGINEER

  2023                                                                          ,

N

CASS

17
COUNTY

CASS

17
COUNTY

APPROVED:

  2023                                                                          ,

                                                                               .BY:

INTERSTATE ENGINEERING, INC.

PROJECT ENGINEER

APPROVED:

CITY OF HORACE

CITY ENGINEER

  2023,                                                                                                                                                           

                                                                                                                                                     BY:

PE 4966

PROFESSIONAL

CASS COUNTY, ND
S18,19, T138N, R49W
HORACE, ND

www.interstateeng.com

Fax (701) 642-5215

Ph (701) 642-5521

Wahpeton, ND  58074-0667

1999 4th St. N.

P.O. Box 667

Interstate Engineering, Inc.

REVISION NO. DATE BY DESCRIPTION

NOT TO SCALE

SITE MAP

Offices in North Dakota, Minnesota, Montana and South Dakota

PROJECT: W2100177

NOT TO SCALE

LOCATION MAP

C1
COUNCIL PERSON................................NAOMI BURKLAND 

COUNCIL PERSON................................SARAH VEIT

COUNCIL PERSON................................STEPHANIE LANDSTROM

COUNCIL PERSON................................JEFF TRUDEAU

CITY ADMINISTRATOR.........................BRENTON HOLPER

MAYOR...................................................KORY PETERSON

CITY OFFICIALS 

CASS COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA

THE CITY OF HORACE

PREPARED FOR

WALL AVE WEST (81ST STREET TO SHEYENNE RIVER)

IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 2022-4

STORM, SANITARY, AND STREET 

FOR

CONSTRUCTION PLANS 

HORACE

FARGO

HORACE

WALL AVE

M
E

M
O

R
Y
 L

N

PROJECT LOCATION

STA 52+28.4

END PROJECT

STA 14+98.37

END PROJECT

NO.138-33.0

BRIDGE 

PROJECT LOCATION

STA 12+08.0

BEGIN PROJECT 

~DDDATE

~DD3523

~KK4966

~KKDATE

E

N
GINEE

RN

O
R
TH DAKO

T
A

R
E

G
ISTER

E
D

PROFESSIONAL

P.E. 3523

3/31/2023 Jason.Ericson Q:\2021\W21's\W2100177\CADD\Design\Sheets\SECTION_1-10\AC1_CoverSheet.dgn9:28:44 AM



w
w

w
.i
n
te
rs
ta
te

e
n
g
.c

o
m

F
a
x
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

2
1
5

P
h
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

5
2
1

W
a
h
p
e
to

n
, 

N
D
  
5
8
0
7
4
-0

6
6
7

1
9
9
9
 4
th
 S
t.
 N
.

P
.O
. 

B
o
x
 6

6
7

In
te
rs
ta
te
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

w
w

w
.i
n
te
rs
ta
te

e
n
g
.c

o
m

F
a
x
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

2
1
5

P
h
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

5
2
1

W
a
h
p
e
to

n
, 

N
D
  
5
8
0
7
4
-0

6
6
7

1
9
9
9
 4
th
 S
t.
 N
.

P
.O
. 

B
o
x
 6

6
7

In
te
rs
ta
te
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

Sheet Number

O
ff
ic
e
s
 i
n
 N

o
rt
h
 D

a
k
o
ta
, 

M
in

n
e
s
o
ta
, 

M
o
n
ta

n
a
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th
 D

a
k
o
ta

 
 

 

    
  

 

   
 

 

 

    

   
 

W
2
1
0
0
1
7
7

R
C

J
E

D
D

J
E

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 W

O
R

K

CURB & GUTTER - TYPE 1 (HIGHBACK)

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T
 D
IS

T
R
IC

T
 N

O
. 
2
0
2
2
-4

C3

 

A
P

R
IL
 2

0
2
3

CONCRETE PAVEMENT - 8IN NON-REINF 

SUPERPAVE FAA 43

S
T

O
R

M
, 
S

A
N
IT

A
R

Y
, 

A
N

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

W
A

L
L
 A

V
E

N
U

E
 W

E
S

T
 (
8
1
S

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 T

O
 S

H
E

Y
E

N
N

E
 R
IV

E
R
)

INLET TYPE II

MAHNOLE

STA 17+75.00

CURB & GUTTER

BEGIN CONCRETE PAVEMENT

STA 17+45.00

BEGIN HMA 

STA 12+08.0

BEGIN PROJECT

STORM SEWER
15 16 17 18 19 20

31'

28'

R/W

STORM SEWERMHST 6W

CB 6W B

CB 6W A

9
10 11 12 13 14

R/W

R
/W

R/W
R/W

R
O

A
D

M
IN
. 
 M

A
IN

T
E

N
A

N
C

E
 

8
1
S

T
 S

T

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 B

y
:

D
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 B

y
:

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

D
a
te
:

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

S
u
rv

e
y
e
d
 B

y
:

B
y

D
a
te

N
o

R
e
v

~DDDATE

~DD3523

E

N
GINEE

RN

O
R
TH DAKO

T
A

R
E

G
ISTER

E
D

PROFESSIONAL

P.E. 3523

3/31/2023 Jason.Ericson Q:\2021\W21's\W2100177\CADD\Design\Sheets\SECTION_1-10\MISC\AC3_Scope of Work.dgn3:27:43 PM



w
w

w
.i
n
te
rs
ta
te

e
n
g
.c

o
m

F
a
x
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

2
1
5

P
h
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

5
2
1

W
a
h
p
e
to

n
, 

N
D
  
5
8
0
7
4
-0

6
6
7

1
9
9
9
 4
th
 S
t.
 N
.

P
.O
. 

B
o
x
 6

6
7

In
te
rs
ta
te
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

w
w

w
.i
n
te
rs
ta
te

e
n
g
.c

o
m

F
a
x
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

2
1
5

P
h
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

5
2
1

W
a
h
p
e
to

n
, 

N
D
  
5
8
0
7
4
-0

6
6
7

1
9
9
9
 4
th
 S
t.
 N
.

P
.O
. 

B
o
x
 6

6
7

In
te
rs
ta
te
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

Sheet Number

O
ff
ic
e
s
 i
n
 N

o
rt
h
 D

a
k
o
ta
, 

M
in

n
e
s
o
ta
, 

M
o
n
ta

n
a
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th
 D

a
k
o
ta

 
 

 

    
  

 

   
 

 

 

    

   
 

W
2
1
0
0
1
7
7

R
C

J
E

D
D

J
E

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 W

O
R

K

ADA RAMPS

CURB & GUTTER - TYPE 1 (HIGHBACK)

DRIVEWAY CONCRETE - 6IN REINFORCED

CURB & GUTTER - TYPE 1 (HIGHBACK)

ADA RAMPS

SIDEWALK CONCRETE - 6IN REINFORCED

SIDEWALK CONCRETE - 6IN REINFORCED

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T
 D
IS

T
R
IC

T
 N

O
. 
2
0
2
2
-4

C4

 

A
P

R
IL
 2

0
2
3

CONCRETE PAVEMENT - 8IN NON-REINF

CONCRETE PAVEMENT - 8IN NON-REINF

SUPERPAVE FAA 43

SUPERPAVE FAA 43

S
T

O
R

M
, 
S

A
N
IT

A
R

Y
, 

A
N

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

W
A

L
L
 A

V
E

N
U

E
 W

E
S

T
 (
8
1
S

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 T

O
 S

H
E

Y
E

N
N

E
 R
IV

E
R
)

MANHOLE

INLET TYPE II

MANHOLE

INLET TYPE II

STORM SEWER STORM SEWER

30'

27 28 29 30 31
WALL AVE

WALL AVE WALL AVE

30'

R/WR/W

W
IL

D
 R

O
S

E
 W

A
Y

STORM SEWER STORM SEWERMHST 3W

CB 3W A

CB 3W B

CB 4W A

MHST 4W

CB 4W B

STORM SEWER

57'

10'

21 22 23 24 25 26

57'

10'

R/W

R/W

P
A

R
K

W
A

Y
M

E
A

D
O

W
L

A
R

K

STORM SEWER

CB 5W A

MHST 5W

CB 5W B

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 B

y
:

D
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 B

y
:

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

D
a
te
:

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

S
u
rv

e
y
e
d
 B

y
:

B
y

D
a
te

N
o

R
e
v

~DDDATE

~DD3523

E

N
GINEE

RN

O
R
TH DAKO

T
A

R
E

G
ISTER

E
D

PROFESSIONAL

P.E. 3523

3/31/2023 Jason.Ericson Q:\2021\W21's\W2100177\CADD\Design\Sheets\SECTION_1-10\MISC\AC4_Scope of Work.dgn3:10:54 PM



w
w

w
.i
n
te
rs
ta
te

e
n
g
.c

o
m

F
a
x
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

2
1
5

P
h
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

5
2
1

W
a
h
p
e
to

n
, 

N
D
  
5
8
0
7
4
-0

6
6
7

1
9
9
9
 4
th
 S
t.
 N
.

P
.O
. 

B
o
x
 6

6
7

In
te
rs
ta
te
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

w
w

w
.i
n
te
rs
ta
te

e
n
g
.c

o
m

F
a
x
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

2
1
5

P
h
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

5
2
1

W
a
h
p
e
to

n
, 

N
D
  
5
8
0
7
4
-0

6
6
7

1
9
9
9
 4
th
 S
t.
 N
.

P
.O
. 

B
o
x
 6

6
7

In
te
rs
ta
te
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

Sheet Number

O
ff
ic
e
s
 i
n
 N

o
rt
h
 D

a
k
o
ta
, 

M
in

n
e
s
o
ta
, 

M
o
n
ta

n
a
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th
 D

a
k
o
ta

 
 

 

    
  

 

   
 

 

 

    

   
 

W
2
1
0
0
1
7
7

R
C

J
E

D
D

J
E

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 W

O
R

K

CURB & GUTTER - TYPE 1 (HIGHBACK)

SIDEWALK CONCRETE - 6IN REINFORCED

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T
 D
IS

T
R
IC

T
 N

O
. 
2
0
2
2
-4

C5

 

A
P

R
IL
 2

0
2
3

CONCRETE PAVEMENT - 8IN NON-REINF

S
T

O
R

M
, 
S

A
N
IT

A
R

Y
, 

A
N

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

W
A

L
L
 A

V
E

N
U

E
 W

E
S

T
 (
8
1
S

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 T

O
 S

H
E

Y
E

N
N

E
 R
IV

E
R
)

MANHOLE

INLET TYPE II

STORM SEWER

SANITARY SEWER

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

32 33 34 35

WALL AVE

R/W

R/W

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

CB 2W A

MHST 2W

CB 2W B

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 B

y
:

D
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 B

y
:

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

D
a
te
:

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

S
u
rv

e
y
e
d
 B

y
:

B
y

D
a
te

N
o

R
e
v

~DDDATE

~DD3523

E

N
GINEE

RN

O
R
TH DAKO

T
A

R
E

G
ISTER

E
D

PROFESSIONAL

P.E. 3523

3/31/2023 Jason.Ericson Q:\2021\W21's\W2100177\CADD\Design\Sheets\SECTION_1-10\MISC\AC5_Scope of Work.dgn3:13:30 PM



DRIVEWAY CONCRETE - 6IN REINFORCED

CURB & GUTTER - TYPE 1 (HIGHBACK)

ADA RAMPS

SIDEWALK - DECORATIVE 6IN

w
w

w
.i
n
te
rs
ta
te

e
n
g
.c

o
m

F
a
x
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

2
1
5

P
h
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

5
2
1

W
a
h
p
e
to

n
, 

N
D
  
5
8
0
7
4
-0

6
6
7

1
9
9
9
 4
th
 S
t.
 N
.

P
.O
. 

B
o
x
 6

6
7

In
te
rs
ta
te
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

w
w

w
.i
n
te
rs
ta
te

e
n
g
.c

o
m

F
a
x
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

2
1
5

P
h
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

5
2
1

W
a
h
p
e
to

n
, 

N
D
  
5
8
0
7
4
-0

6
6
7

1
9
9
9
 4
th
 S
t.
 N
.

P
.O
. 

B
o
x
 6

6
7

In
te
rs
ta
te
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

Sheet Number

 
 

 

    
  

 

   
 

 

 

    

   
 

W
2
1
0
0
1
7
7

D
D

R
C

J
E

J
E

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 W

O
R

K

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T
 D
IS

T
R
IC

T
 N

O
. 
2
0
2
2
-4

C6

M
E

M
O

R
Y
 L

A
N

E

WALL AVE

SHARED USE PATH CONCRETE - 6IN REINFORCED

CONCRETE PAVEMENT - 8IN NON-REINF

SUPERPAVE FAA 43

S
T

O
R

M
, 
S

A
N
IT

A
R

Y
, 

A
N

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

W
A

L
L
 A

V
E

N
U

E
 W

E
S

T
 (
8
1
S

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 T

O
 S

H
E

Y
E

N
N

E
 R
IV

E
R
)

 

MANHOLE

INLET TYPE II

A
P

R
IL
 2

0
2
3

STORM SEWER STORM SEWER

SANITARY SEWER

SANITARY SEWER

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

24'

15'

20'

30'

10'

36 37 38 39
40

24'

15'

20'

REMOVE SIDEWALK

REMOVE SIDEWALK

30'

10'

R
/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/WR/W

R
/W

R
/W

L
O

S
T
 R
IV

E
R
 R

O
A

D

STORM SEWER STORM SEWER

SANITARY SEWER

SANITARY SEWER

S
A

N
IT

A
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

MHST 5 CB 6D

CB 6A

MHST 6

CB 6B

CB 6C

CB 6E

MHST 1W

CB 2W A

MHST 2W

CB 2W B

CB 6F

CB 1W A

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 B

y
:

D
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 B

y
:

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

D
a
te
:

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

S
u
rv

e
y
e
d
 B

y
:

O
ff
ic
e
s
 i
n
 N

o
rt
h
 D

a
k
o
ta
, 

M
in

n
e
s
o
ta
, 

M
o
n
ta

n
a
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th
 D

a
k
o
ta

B
y

D
a
te

N
o

R
e
v

~DDDATE

~DD3523

E

N
GINEE

RN

O
R
TH DAKO

T
A

R
E

G
ISTER

E
D

PROFESSIONAL

P.E. 3523

3/31/2023 Jason.Ericson Q:\2021\W21's\W2100177\CADD\Design\Sheets\SECTION_1-10\MISC\AC6_Scope of Work.dgn3:00:48 PM



w
w

w
.i
n
te
rs
ta
te

e
n
g
.c

o
m

F
a
x
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

2
1
5

P
h
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

5
2
1

W
a
h
p
e
to

n
, 

N
D
  
5
8
0
7
4
-0

6
6
7

1
9
9
9
 4
th
 S
t.
 N
.

P
.O
. 

B
o
x
 6

6
7

In
te
rs
ta
te
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

w
w

w
.i
n
te
rs
ta
te

e
n
g
.c

o
m

F
a
x
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

2
1
5

P
h
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

5
2
1

W
a
h
p
e
to

n
, 

N
D
  
5
8
0
7
4
-0

6
6
7

1
9
9
9
 4
th
 S
t.
 N
.

P
.O
. 

B
o
x
 6

6
7

In
te
rs
ta
te
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

Sheet Number

O
ff
ic
e
s
 i
n
 N

o
rt
h
 D

a
k
o
ta
, 

M
in

n
e
s
o
ta
, 

M
o
n
ta

n
a
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th
 D

a
k
o
ta

 
 

 

    
  

 

   
 

 

 

    

   
 

W
2
1
0
0
1
7
7

R
C

J
E

D
D

J
E

S
C

O
P

E
 O

F
 W

O
R

K

ADA RAMPSDRIVEWAY CONCRETE - 6IN REINFORCED

CURB & GUTTER - TYPE 1 (HIGHBACK)

DRIVEWAY CONCRETE - 6IN REINFORCED

CURB & GUTTER - TYPE 1 (HIGHBACK)

ADA RAMPS

APPROACH SLAB

SIDEWALK CONCRETE - 6IN REINFORCED

SIDEWALK CONCRETE - 6IN REINFORCED SIDEWALK - DECORATIVE 6IN

SIDEWALK - DECORATIVE 6IN

IM
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T
 D
IS

T
R
IC

T
 N

O
. 
2
0
2
2
-4

C7

CONCRETE PAVEMENT - 8IN NON-REINF

CONCRETE PAVEMENT - 8IN NON-REINF
SUPERPAVE FAA 43

S
T

O
R

M
, 
S

A
N
IT

A
R

Y
, 

A
N

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

W
A

L
L
 A

V
E

N
U

E
 W

E
S

T
 (
8
1
S

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 T

O
 S

H
E

Y
E

N
N

E
 R
IV

E
R
)

 

MANHOLE

INLET TYPE II

MANHOLE

INLET TYPE II

A
P

R
IL
 2

0
2
3

STORM SEWER

SANITARY SEWER

SH
EYEN

N
E R

IVER

REMOVE PIPE 42 LF

47
48

49
50 51

52

BRIDGE
WALL AVE

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

R/W

WALL AVESTORM SEWER

SANITARY SEWER

CB 9A

MHST 9

CB 9B

CB 9C

STORM SEWER

SANITARY SEWER

30'15'15'
15'

24'
24'

41 42 43 44 45 46
WALL AVE

WALL AVE

30'15'15'
15'

24'
24'

R/WR/W

R/W

R/W R/W

STORM SEWER

SANITARY SEWER

MHST 7

CB 7A

CB 7B
CB 7E CB 7F

CB 7C

CB 7D

CB 8E
CB 8B

CB 8A

MHST 8

CB 8C

CB 8D

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 B

y
:

D
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 B

y
:

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

D
a
te
:

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

S
u
rv

e
y
e
d
 B

y
:

B
y

D
a
te

N
o

R
e
v

~DDDATE

~DD3523

E

N
GINEE

RN

O
R
TH DAKO

T
A

R
E

G
ISTER

E
D

PROFESSIONAL

P.E. 3523

3/31/2023 Jason.Ericson Q:\2021\W21's\W2100177\CADD\Design\Sheets\SECTION_1-10\MISC\AC7_Scope of Work.dgn2:58:01 PM



R/W R/W

�

 
 

 

    
  

 

   
 

 

 

    

   
 

T
Y

P
IC

A
L
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S

R
C

C
V

D
D

W
2
1
0
0
1
7
7

C
V

S
T

O
R

M
 A

N
D
 S

T
R

E
E

T
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 D
IS

T
R
IC

T
 N

O
. 
2
0
2
2
-4

 

H
O

R
A

C
E
, 

N
O

R
T

H
 D

A
K

O
T

A
W

A
L
L
 A

V
E

N
U

E
 W

E
S

T
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N

N
O

V
 2

0
2
2

�R/W R/W

3/31/2023 Jason.Ericson Q:\2021\W21's\W2100177\CADD\Design\Sheets\SECTION_30_TYPICAL SECTIONS\A030TP_001_West.dgn3:19:43 PM

~DDDATE

~DD3523

E

N
GINEE

RN

O
R
TH DAKO

T
A

R
E

G
ISTER

E
D

PROFESSIONAL

P.E. 3523

12' 12'

w
w

w
.i
n
te
rs
ta
te

e
n
g
.c

o
m

F
a
x
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

2
1
5

P
h
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

5
2
1

W
a
h
p
e
to

n
, 

N
D
  
5
8
0
7
4
-0

6
6
7

1
9
9
9
 4
th
 S
t.
 N
.

P
.O
. 

B
o
x
 6

6
7

In
te
rs
ta
te
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

w
w

w
.i
n
te
rs
ta
te

e
n
g
.c

o
m

F
a
x
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

2
1
5

P
h
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

5
2
1

W
a
h
p
e
to

n
, 

N
D
  
5
8
0
7
4
-0

6
6
7

1
9
9
9
 4
th
 S
t.
 N
.

P
.O
. 

B
o
x
 6

6
7

In
te
rs
ta
te
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

Sheet Number

TS1

Existing Ground Existing Ground

Wall Ave West - Existing Typical Section

VARIES 66'-135'

14' 14'

Geotextile Reinforcement Fabric - Type R1

12" Subgrade Preparation

Insert A

Geotextile Reinforcement Fabric - Type R1

12" Subgrade Preparation

0.030 ft/ft Slope0.030 ft/ft Slope

See Insert A

4" Min. Topsoil Replacement

depending on location
May be down or up to daylight

5:1

depending on location

May be down or up to daylight

VARIES

8" Superpave FAA 43

8" Superpave FAA 43

32'17' 59'

50' 75'

Wall Ave West - Proposed Typical Section - HMA

12" Aggregate Base Course - Class 5

VARIES

12" Aggregate Base Course - Class 5

Existing Aggregate Surface 0" to 12"

STA 17+45.0 TO STA 17+75.0

WEST OF WALL AVE BRIDGE 

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 B

y
:

D
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 B

y
:

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

D
a
te
:

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

S
u
rv

e
y
e
d
 B

y
:

O
ff
ic
e
s
 i
n
 N

o
rt
h
 D

a
k
o
ta
, 

M
in

n
e
s
o
ta
, 

M
o
n
ta

n
a
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th
 D

a
k
o
ta

B
y

D
a
te

N
o

R
e
v



R/WR/W

�

H
O

R
A

C
E
, 

N
O

R
T

H
 D

A
K

O
T

A
W

A
L
L
 A

V
E

N
U

E
 W

E
S

T
 R

E
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T
IO

N

N
O

V
 2

0
2
2

 
 

 

    
  

 

   
 

 

 

    

   
 

T
Y

P
IC

A
L
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
S

R
C

C
V

D
D

W
2
1
0
0
1
7
7

C
V

S
T

O
R

M
 A

N
D
 S

T
R

E
E

T
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 D
IS

T
R
IC

T
 N

O
. 
2
0
2
2
-4

�

R/W

3/31/2023 Jason.Ericson Q:\2021\W21's\W2100177\CADD\Design\Sheets\SECTION_30_TYPICAL SECTIONS\A030TP_001_West.dgn3:24:22 PM

~DDDATE

~DD3523

E

N
GINEE

RN

O
R
TH DAKO

T
A

R
E

G
ISTER

E
D

PROFESSIONAL

P.E. 3523

1'

TYP.

1.5'

4' TYP.

14' 14'

depending on location
May be down or up to daylight

4" Min. Topsoil Replacement

5:1

2.0%

See Insert A

0.030 ft/ft Slope
5:1

 1.5% 

Highback Curb & Gutter

4" Draintile

0.030 ft/ft Slope

4" Min. Topsoil Replacement

6" Reinforced Sidewalk Concrete

Geotextile Reinforcement Fabric - Type R1

12" Subgrade Preparation

Geotextile Reinforcement Fabric - Type R1

12" Subgrade Preparation

Insert A

depending on location
May be down or up to daylight

2.5'2' 2.5'

33' VARIESVARIES

Wall Ave West - Proposed Typical Section - Concrete

4'

8" Non-Reinforced - Doweled Concrete Pavement

12" Aggregate Base Course - Class 5

12" Aggregate Base Course - Class 5

8" Non-Reinforced - Doweled Concrete Pavement

6" Aggregate Base Course - Class 5

6" Reinforced Decorative Concrete

100'

w
w

w
.i
n
te
rs
ta
te

e
n
g
.c

o
m

F
a
x
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

2
1
5

P
h
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

5
2
1

W
a
h
p
e
to

n
, 

N
D
  
5
8
0
7
4
-0

6
6
7

1
9
9
9
 4
th
 S
t.
 N
.

P
.O
. 

B
o
x
 6

6
7

In
te
rs
ta
te
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

w
w

w
.i
n
te
rs
ta
te

e
n
g
.c

o
m

F
a
x
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

2
1
5

P
h
 (
7
0
1
) 
6
4
2
-5

5
2
1

W
a
h
p
e
to

n
, 

N
D
  
5
8
0
7
4
-0

6
6
7

1
9
9
9
 4
th
 S
t.
 N
.

P
.O
. 

B
o
x
 6

6
7

In
te
rs
ta
te
 E

n
g
in
e
e
ri
n
g
, 
In

c
.

Sheet Number

TS2

33'

14' 14' 10'

Geotextile Reinforcement Fabric - Type R1

12" Subgrade Preparation

Insert A

Geotextile Reinforcement Fabric - Type R1

12" Subgrade Preparation

 1.5% 
0.030 ft/ft Slope0.030 ft/ft Slope

Highback Curb & Gutter

See Insert A4" Draintile

4' TYP.

TYP.

1.5'

2.0%

4" Min. Topsoil Replacement

depending on location
May be down or up to daylight

4:1

2.0%

2'2.5'2.5'2'

VARIES

VARIES

Wall Ave West - Proposed Typical Section - Concrete

12" Aggregate Base Course - Class 5

8" Non-Reinforced - Doweled Concrete Pavement

12" Aggregate Base Course - Class 5

Concrete Pavement
8" Non-Reinforced - Doweled

4" Min. Topsoil Replacement

6" Reinforced Sidewalk Concrete

depending on location

May be down or up to daylight

VARIES

VARIES 66'-135'

STA 17+75.0 TO STA 38+70.0

WEST OF WALL AVE BRIDGE 

STA 39+95.0 TO STA 52+28.4

WEST OF WALL AVE BRIDGE 

TRANSITION SIDEWALK

STA 38+70.0 TO STA 39+95.0

WEST OF WALL AVE BRIDGE 

8'

C
h
e
c
k
e
d
 B

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 B

y
:

D
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 B

y
:

P
ro
je
c
t 

N
o
:

D
a
te
:

D
e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o
n

S
u
rv

e
y
e
d
 B

y
:

O
ff
ic
e
s
 i
n
 N

o
rt
h
 D

a
k
o
ta
, 

M
in

n
e
s
o
ta
, 

M
o
n
ta

n
a
 a

n
d
 S

o
u
th
 D

a
k
o
ta

B
y

D
a
te

N
o

R
e
v



 

MEMO 
To:  Horace City Council 
  (Via email:  Bholper@cityofhorace.com) 
  
From:  James Dahlman, PE 

Date:  March 14, 2023 

Re:  Sanitary Sewer Ordinance 
  Horace, North Dakota 
  ER23-03-103 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

The City of Horace does not have a sewer ordinance.  Responsibility for repairs was a recent 
topic for the City Council and without an ordinance at that time, a decision to reimburse the 
homeowner for repairs was made. At that time, the City Council requested City Staff to 
prepare a sewer ordinance for future use. 
 
The sewer ordinance establishes the procedure and cost for connection to sewer lines in the 
City of Horace, sets the monthly charges for sewer service and sets out the City’s and 
customer’s responsibilities for repair to sewer lines. 
 
The attached policy has been prepared by the city attorney’s office, reviewed by public 
works, project management, administration, and engineering and all recommend approval. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (701) 532-0438. 
Thank You 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

mailto:Bholper@cityofhorace.com


ORDINANCE NO. 2022-17 

  

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT CHAPTER 9-01 OF TITLE IX OF THE 

REVISED ORDINANCES OF 2003 OF THE CITY OF HORACE, NORTH DAKOTA, 

RELATING TO SEWER AND GARBAGE SERVICE AND TO CREATE AND ENACT 

SECTION 9-0229 OF TITLE IX OF THE REVISED ORDINANCES OF 2003 OF THE CITY 

OF HORACE, NORTH DAKOTA, RELATING TO WATER SERVICE. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HORACE, NORTH 

DAKOTA:  

 

SECTION 1.  Chapter 9-01 of Title IX of the Revised Ordinances of 2003 of the City of 

Horace, North Dakota, is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows: 

CHAPTER 9-01 

 

GARBAGE AND SEWER SERVICE 

 

SECTIONS:  

 

9-0101. Sewer Service Connection, Repairs, and Rates. 

9-0102. Garbage ServiceDefinitions. 

9-0103. DischargeConnection to Public Sewers Required.  

9-0104. Certain Discharges of Storm Sewer Water Deemed NuisancePrivate 

Wastewater Disposal. 

9-0105. PenaltyProcedure and Cost for Connection to Sewer Lines. 

9-0106. Use of Public Sewers. 

9-0107. Waste Prohibited from Being Discharged to the Wastewater Treatment 

System. 

9-0108. Certain Discharges of Storm Sewer Water Deemed Nuisance. 

9-0109. Power and Authority of Inspectors. 

9-0110. Monthly Charges for Sewer Service. 

9-0111. Sewer Rates and Charges – Billing. 

9-0112. When Bill Due: Failure to Pay. 

9-0113. Liability of Owners and Occupants for Services. 

9-0114. City’s and Customer’s Responsibilities for Repairs to Sewer Lines. 

9-0115. Penalty. 

 

 

9-0101. SEWER SERVICE CONNECTION, REPAIRS, AND RATES. The City 

Council of the City of Horace shall, by resolution,hereby establishes the procedure and cost for 

connection to sewer lines in the City of Horace, sets the monthly charges for sewer service, and 

sets out the City’s and customer’s responsibilities for repairs to sewer lines. 



2 

9-0102. DEFINITIONS. The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this 

chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly 

indicates a different meaning: 

1. “Building drain” means that part of the lowest horizontal piping of a drainage 

system which receives the discharge from soil, waste, and other drainage pipes 

inside the walls of the building and conveys it to the building sewer, beginning 

ten feet (10’) outside the inner face of the building wall. 

2. “Building sewer” means the extension from the building drain to the public 

sewer or other place of disposal, also called house connection. 

2.3. “Clearwater” means the discharge from a sump pump.  

3.4. “Combined sewer” means a sewer intended to receive both wastewater and 

stormwater or ground water.  This type of sewer will not be permitted in the 

future.  

4.5. “Cooling water” means the water discharged from any use such as air 

conditioning, cooling or refrigeration, during which the only pollutant added to 

the water is heat. 

5.6. “Floatable oil” means oil, fat, or grease in a physical state such that it will 

separate by gravity from wastewater by treatment in an approved pretreatment 

facility. Wastewater shall be considered free of floatable fat if it is properly 

pretreated and the wastewater does not interfere with the collection system. 

6.7. “Garbage” means the animal and vegetable waste resulting from handling, 

preparation, cooking, and serving of foods. 

7.8. “Industrial wastes” mean the wastewater from industrial processes, trade, or 

business as distinct from domestic or sanitary wastes. 

8.9. “National pollutant discharge elimination system (NPDES)” means the 

program for issuing, conditioning, and denying permits for the discharge of 

pollutants from point sources into the navigable waters, the contiguous zone, and 

the oceans pursuant to section 402 of the Clean Water Act. 

9.10. “Natural outlet” means any outlet, including storm sewers and combined sewer 

overflows, into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake, or other body of surface or 

groundwater. 

10.11. “Pretreatment” means application of physical, chemical, and biological 

processes to reduce the amount of pollutants in or alter the nature of the pollutant 

properties in wastewater prior to discharging such wastewater into the publicly 

owned wastewater treatment system. 

11.12. “Pretreatment standards” means all applicable federal rules and regulations 

implementing section 307 of the Clean Water Act, as well as any nonconflicting 



3 

state or local standards. In cases of conflicting standards of regulations, the more 

stringent thereof shall be applied. 

12.13. “Properly shredded garbage” means the wastes from the preparation, cooking, 

and dispensing of food that have been shredded to such a degree that all particles 

will be carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in public 

sewers, with no particle greater than one-half inch (1/2”) in any dimension. 

13.14. “Public sewer” means a common sewer controlled by a governmental agency or 

public utility. 

14.15. “Public Works Supervisor” means the supervisor of City public infrastructure 

including but not limited to water, sewers, and streets. The public works 

supervisor oversees employees in this department and reports to the City 

Administrator and/or City Council. 

15.16. “Radioactive wastes” means radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or 

concentration that they do not comply with regulations or orders issued by the 

appropriated authority having control over their use and which will or may cause 

damage or hazards to the sewerage facilities or personnel operating the system. 

16.17. “Sanitary sewer” means a sewer that carries liquid and water-carried wastes 

from residences, commercial buildings, industrial plants, and institutions together 

with minor quantities of groundwater, stormwater, and surface water that are not 

admitted intentionally. 

17.18. “Sewage” means the spent water of a community. The preferred term is 

“wastewater.” 

18.19. “Sewer” means a pipe or conduit that carries wastewater or drainage water. 

19.20. “Significant industrial user” means any industrial user of the City’s wastewater 

treatment system whose flow exceeds: 

a. Fifty thousand (50,000) gallons per day; or 

b. Five percent (5%) of the daily capacity of the treatment system. 

20.21. “Slug discharge” means any discharge of water or wastewater which in 

concentration of any given constituent or in quantity of flow exceeds for any 

period of duration longer than fifteen (15) minutes more than five (5) times the 

average twenty four (24) hour concentration of flows during normal operation and 

shall adversely affect the collection system and/or performance of the waste water 

treatment works. 

21.22. “Storm drain” (sometimes termed “storm sewer”) means a drain or sewer for 

conveying water, groundwater, subsurface water, or unpolluted water from any 

source. 



4 

22.23. “Suspended solids” means total suspended matter that either floats on the surface 

of, or is in suspension in water, wastewater, or other liquids, and that is removable 

by laboratory filtering. 

23.24. “Unpolluted water” means water of quality equal to or better than the effluent 

criteria in effect or water that would not cause violation of receiving water quality 

standards and would not be benefited by discharge to the sanitary sewers and 

wastewater treatment facilities provided. 

24.25. “User” means any person who discharges, causes, or permits the discharge of 

wastewater into the City’s waste water treatment system. 

25.26. “Wastewater” means the spent water of a community. From the standpoint of 

source, it may be a combination of the liquid and water-carried wastes from 

residences, commercial buildings, industrial plants, and institutions, together with 

any groundwater, surface water, and stormwater that may be present. 

26.27. “Wastewater facilities” means the structures, equipment, and processes required 

to collect, carry away, and treat domestic and industrial wastes and dispose of the 

effluent. 

27.28. “Wastewater treatment works” means an arrangement of devices and structures 

for treating wastewater, industrial wastes, and slug. The term “wastewater 

treatment works” sometimes used as synonymous with “waste treatment plant” or 

“wastewater treatment plant” or “water pollution control plant.” 

28.29. “Watercourse” means a natural or artificial channel for the passage of water 

either continuously or intermittently. 

Terms not otherwise defined herein shall be as adopted in the latest edition of Standard Methods 

for the Examination of Water and Wastewater, published by the American Public Health 

Association, the American Water Works Association, and the Water Pollution Control 

Federation. 

9-0103. CONNECTION TO PUBLIC SEWERS REQUIRED. 

1. It is unlawful for any person to place, deposit, or permit to be deposited in any 

unsanitary manner on public or private property within the City of Horace, or in 

any area under the jurisdiction of the City, any human or animal excrement, 

garbage, or other objectionable waste. 

2. It is unlawful to discharge to any natural outlet within the City, or in any area under 

the jurisdiction of the City, any sewage or other polluted waters except where 

suitable treatment has been provided in accordance with subsequent provisions of 

this ordinance. 

3. Except as hereinafter provided, it shall be unlawful to construct or maintain any 

privy, privy vault, septic tank, cesspool, or other facility intended or used for the 

disposal of wastewater. 



5 

4. The owner of all houses, buildings, or properties used for human occupancy, 

employment, recreation, or other purposes, in the City and abutting on any street, 

alley, or right-of-way in which there is now located or may in the future be located 

a public sanitary or combined sewer of the City, is hereby required at the owner’s 

expense to install suitable toilet facilities therein, and to connect such facilities 

directly with the proper public sewer in accordance with the provisions of this 

ordinance, within two (2) years after the date of official notice to do so or until tank 

failure, whichever occurs later, provided that said public sewer is within two 

hundred (200) feet of the property line. 

9-0104. PRIVATE WASTEWATER DISPOSAL. 

1. Where a public sanitary or combined sewer is not readily available, the building 

sewer shall be connected to a private wastewater disposal system complying with 

the provisions of this section.  

2. Before commencement of construction of a private wastewater disposal system, the 

owner shall first obtain a written permit signed by Fargo Cass Public Health. The 

application for such permit shall be made on a form furnished by Fargo Cass Public 

Health, which the applicant shall supplement with any plans, specifications, and 

other information as are deemed necessary by Fargo Cass Public Health and the 

City. A permit and inspection fee as set by resolution of the City Council shall be 

paid to the City at the time the application is filed.  

3. A permit for a private wastewater disposal system shall not become effective until 

the installation is completed to the satisfaction of Fargo Cass Public Health. Fargo 

Cass Public Health shall be allowed to inspect the work at any stage of construction, 

and in any event, the applicant for the permit shall notify Fargo Cass Public Health 

when the work is ready for final inspection, and before any underground portions 

are covered. The inspection shall be made within twenty-four (24) hours of the 

receipt of notice by the City.  

4. The type, capacities, location, and layout of a private wastewater disposal system 

shall comply with all recommendations and/or regulations of Fargo Cass Public 

Health. A permit shall not be issued for any private wastewater disposal system not 

meeting these conditions. A septic tank or cesspool shall not be permitted to 

discharge to any natural outlet or to the ground surface.  

5. At such time as a public sewer becomes available to a property served by a private 

wastewater disposal system, as provided in this Section, a direct connection shall 

be made to the public sewer within two (2) years after the date of official notice to 

do so or until tank failure, whichever occurs later, in compliance with this 

ordinance, and any septic tanks, cesspools, and similar private wastewater disposal 

facilities shall be cleaned of slug and filled with suitable material.  

2.6. The owner shall operate and maintain the private wastewater disposal facilities in 

a sanitary manner at all times, at no expense to the City. All slug or solids, to be 



6 

disposed of from a septic tank, cesspool, or other individual method of disposal 

shall be disposed of by a licensed septic tank pumper.  

3.7. Statements contained in this section shall not be construed to interfere with any 

additional requirements that may be imposed by the local health officer, Fargo Cass 

Public Health. 

9-0105. PROCEDURE AND COST FOR CONNECTION TO SEWER LINES.  

1. Unauthorized persons shall not uncover, make any connections with or opening 

into, use, alter, or disturb any public sewer or appurtenance thereof without first 

obtaining a written permit from the City.  

2. Sewer service connection permits shall not be issued by the City until a fee for each 

connection shall have been paid for such permit. Fees shall be set by resolution of 

the City Council. 

3. Costs and expenses incidental to the installation and connection of the building 

sewer shall be the sole responsibility of the owner. The owner shall indemnify the 

City from any loss or damage that may directly or indirectly be occasioned by the 

installation of the building sewer.  

4. A separate and independent building sewer shall be provided for every building; 

except where one (1) building stands at the rear of another on an interior lot and 

private sewer is not available or can be constructed to the rear building through an 

adjoining alley, court, yard, or driveway, the building sewer from the front building 

may be extended to the rear building and the whole considered as one (1) building 

sewer, but the City does not and will not assume any obligation or responsibility 

for damage caused by or resulting from any such single connection aforementioned.  

5. Old building sewers may be used in connection with new buildings only when they 

are found, on examination and test, to meet all requirements of this ordinance.  

6. The size, slope, alignment, materials of construction of all sanitary sewers including 

building sewers, and the methods to be used in excavating, placing of the pipe, 

joints, testing, and backfilling the trench, shall all conform to the requirements of 

the building and plumbing code or other applicable rules and regulations of the 

City. Pipe used in the construction or reconstruction of structures shall be Schedule 

40. In the absence of suitable code provisions set forth in appropriate specifications 

of the American Society for Testing and Materials and Water Pollution Control 

Federation Manual Practice No. 9 shall apply.  

7. Whenever possible, the building sewer shall be brought to the building at an 

elevation below the basement floor. In all buildings in which any building drain is 

too low to permit gravity flow to the public sewer, sanitary sewage carried by such 

building drain shall be lifted by an approved means and discharged to the building 

sewer.  



7 

8. Persons shall not make connection of roof downspouts, foundation drains, areaway 

drains, or other sources of surface runoff or groundwater to a building sewer, or 

building drain which in turn is connected directly or indirectly to a public sanitary 

or clearwater sewer unless such connection is approved by the City and the North 

Dakota State Department of Health, except as provided hereafter: 

a. The public works supervisor is authorized to issue a permit to allow a 

property owner to discharge water into the sanitary water system. Prior to 

the issuance of the permit, the public works supervisor, or designee, shall 

verify that the criteria set forth in subsection (c) of this section has been 

satisfied. The permit shall authorize such discharge only from November 

15 through March 15 of each year and the owner and property shall be 

subject to such monthly winter discharge fee as established by resolution of 

the City Council. 

b. The winter discharge permit shall further require the owner to permit an 

inspection of the property on March 16 or as soon thereafter as possible by 

the public works supervisor, or designee, to determine that the discharge 

into the sanitary sewer has been discontinued. In lieu of having the City 

inspect the property, a person may furnish a certificate from a licensed 

plumber certifying that their property is in compliance with this section. In 

the event the owner refuses that inspection (or fails to furnish a plumber’s 

certificate and photograph of the discharge in lieu thereof) or fails to 

discontinue the discharge into the sanitary sewer, the owner and property 

shall be subject to such increase in fee as established by resolution. A 

nonrefundable increased fee as established by resolution of the City Council 

will commence with the April water and sewer billing and continue until 

the property owner establishes compliance with this section. 

c. For a property owner to be eligible for a winter discharge permit, the water 

being discharged from the sump pump or footing drain cannot be readily 

discharged into a storm drain or other acceptable drainage system and at 

least one (1) of the following criteria must be met: 

(1) The freezing of the surface water discharge from the sump pump or 

footing drain is causing a dangerous condition, such as ice buildup 

or flooding, on either public or private property; 

(2) The property owner has demonstrated that there is danger that the 

sump pump or footing drain pipes will freeze up and result in either 

failure or damage to the sump pump unit or the footing drain and 

cause basement flooding. 

d. If the public works supervisor, or designee, determines that a sump pump 

or footing drain is causing an icy condition on streets or sidewalks between 

November 15 to March 15, the public works supervisor may require the 

property owner to obtain a discharge permit and discharge the owner’s sump 



8 

pump into the sanitary sewer system following ten (10) days’ written notice 

and an opportunity for the property owner to be heard. 

e. Any property with a sump pump found not in compliance with this section, 

but subsequently verified as compliant shall be subject to an annual 

inspection to confirm continued compliance. Any property found not to be 

in compliance upon reinspection, or a person refusing to allow their 

property to be reinspected within thirty (30) days after receipt of mailed 

written notice from the City of the reinspection, shall be subject to the 

nonrefundable fee set forth in subsection (b) of this section. 

f. The public works supervisor, or designee, showing proper credentials and 

identification, shall be permitted to enter all properties for the purpose of 

inspection and observation to identify prohibited discharges into the 

sanitary sewer system. Any person may furnish a certificate from a licensed 

plumber certifying their property is in compliance with this section, in lieu 

of having the City inspect their property. Any person refusing to allow their 

property to be inspected [or failing to furnish a plumber’s certificate thereof 

within fourteen (14) days from the date the public works supervisor, or 

designee, is denied admittance to the property] shall immediately become 

subject to the increased penalty provided for in subsection (b) of this 

section, which shall continue until proof of compliance with this section has 

been provided to the City. 

9. The connection of the building sewer into the public sewer shall conform to the 

requirements of the building and plumbing code or other applicable rules and 

regulations of the City, or the procedures set forth in appropriate specifications of 

the A.S.T.M. and the W.P.C.F. Manual of Practice No. 9. All such connections shall 

be made gas-tight and watertight and verified by proper testing. Any deviation from 

the prescribed procedures and materials must be approved by the City before 

installation.  

10. The applicant for the building sewer permit shall notify the City when the building 

sewer is ready for inspection and connection to the public sewer. The connection 

and testing shall be made under the supervision of the City.  

11. Excavations for building sewer installation shall be adequately guarded with 

barricades and lights so as to protect the public from hazard. Streets, sidewalks, 

parkways, and other public property disturbed in the course of the work shall be 

restored in a manner satisfactory to the City. 

9-0106. USE OF PUBLIC SEWERS.  

1. No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any unpolluted waters such as 

stormwater, surface water, groundwater, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, or 

cooling water to any building drain or sewer which in turn is connected directly or 

indirectly to the sanitary sewer unless such connection is approved by the City. 



9 

2. Stormwater, other than that exempted, and all other unpolluted drainage shall be 

discharged to such sewers as are specifically designated as combined sewers or 

storm sewers, or to a natural outlet approved by the public works supervisor or 

designee. 

3. No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following described 

water or wastes to any public sewers: 

a. Solid or viscous wastes. Solid or viscous wastes which will or may cause 

obstruction to the flow in a sewer, or otherwise interfere with the proper 

operation of the wastewater treatment system. Prohibited materials include, 

but are not limited to, grease, uncomminuted garbage, animal guts or 

tissues, paunch manure, bones, hair, hides or fleshings, entrails, whole 

blood, feathers, ashes, cinders, sand, spent lime, stone or marble dust, metal, 

glass, straw, shavings, grass clippings, rags, spent grains, spent hops, waste 

paper, wood, plastic, tar, asphalt residues, residues from refining or 

processing of fuel or lubricating oil, and similar substances. 

b. Improperly shredded garbage. Garbage that has not been ground or 

comminuted to such a degree that all particles will be carried freely in 

suspension under flow conditions normally prevailing in the public sewers, 

with no particle greater than one-half inch (1/2”) in any dimension. 

c. Corrosive wastes. Any waste which will cause corrosion or deterioration of 

the treatment system. 

(1) All wastes discharged to the public sewer system must have a pH 

value in the range of six (6) to nine (9) standard units, except as 

otherwise provided herein. Prohibited materials, include, but are not 

limited to, acids, sulfides, concentrated chloride and fluoride 

compounds, metallic plating, and substances which will react with 

water to form acidic products. 

(2) When authorized by special permit issued by the public works 

supervisor, wastes discharged to the publicly owned treatment 

works may exceed a pH value up to (10.5), provided that pH value 

testing of the City sewer shall be done at least four (4) times per year 

by the industry receiving the special permit. The test shall be taken 

at the nearest access hole on the downstream side of the sewer 

service for the particular building or site for which the special permit 

was issued. 

d. Toxic substances. Any water containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids, 

or gases in sufficient quantity, either singly or by interaction with other 

wastes, to injure or interfere with any sewage treatment process, constitute 

a hazard to humans or animals, create a public nuisance, or create any 

hazard in the receiving waters of the wastewater treatment plant. 



10 

e. Explosive mixtures. Liquids, solids, or gases which by reason of their nature 

or quantity are, or may be sufficient either alone or by interaction with other 

substances to cause fire or explosion or be injurious in any other way to the 

sewerage facilities or to the operation of the system. At no time shall two 

(2) successive readings on an explosion hazard meter, at the point of 

discharge into the sewer system, be more than five percent (5%) nor any 

single reading over ten percent (10%) of the lower explosive limit (L.E.L.) 

of the meter. Prohibited materials include, but are not limited to gasoline, 

kerosene, naphtha, benzene, toluene, zylene, ethers, alcohols, ketones, 

aldehydes, peroxides, chlorates, perchlorates, bromates, carbides, hydrides, 

and sulfides. 

f. Slug discharge. Wastewaters at a flow rate or containing such 

concentrations or quantities of pollutants that exceed for any time period 

longer than fifteen (15) minutes more than five (5) times the average 

twenty-four (24) hour concentration, quantities, or flow during normal 

operation and that would cause a treatment process upset and subsequent 

loss of treatment efficiency. 

g. Radioactive wastes. Radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or 

concentration that they do not comply with regulations or orders issued by 

the appropriate authority having control over their use and which will or 

may cause damage or hazards to the sewerage facilities or personnel 

operating the system. 

4. The following described substances, materials, waters, or waste shall be limited in 

discharges to municipal systems to concentrations or quantities which will not harm 

either the sewers, waste water treatment process or equipment, will not have an 

adverse effect on the receiving stream, or will not otherwise endanger lives, limb, 

public property, or constitute a nuisance. The public works supervisor may set 

limitations lower than the limitations established in the regulations below if in the 

public works supervisor’s opinion such more severe limitations are necessary to 

meet the above objectives. In forming the public works supervisor’s opinion as to 

the acceptability, the public works supervisor will give consideration to such factors 

as the quantity of subject waste in relation to flows and velocities in the sewers, 

materials of construction of the sewers, the wastewater treatment process 

employed, capacity of the wastewater treatment plant, degree of treatability of the 

waste in the wastewater treatment plant, and other pertinent factors. The limitations 

or restrictions on materials or characteristics of waste or wastewaters discharged to 

the sanitary sewer which shall not be violated without approval of the public works 

supervisor are as follows: 

a. Wastewater having a temperature higher than one hundred fifty (150) 

degrees Fahrenheit [sixty-five (65) degrees Celsius]. 

b. Wastewater containing more than twenty-five (25) milligrams per liter of 

petroleum oil, nonbiodegradable cutting oils, or product of mineral oil 

origin. 



11 

c. Wastewater from industrial plants containing floatable oils, fat, or grease. 

d. Any garbage that has not been properly shredded. Garbage grinders may be 

connected to sanitary sewers from homes, hotels, institutions, restaurants, 

hospitals, catering establishments, or similar places where garbage 

originates from the preparation of food in kitchens for the purpose of 

consumption on the premises or when served by caterers. 

e. Any waters or wastes containing iron, chromium, copper, zinc, and similar 

objectionable or toxic substances to such degree that any such material 

received in the composite wastewater at the wastewater treatment works 

exceeds the limits established by the public works supervisor for such 

materials. 

f. Any waters or wastes containing odor-producing substances such as 

phenols exceeding limits which may be established by the public works 

supervisor. 

g. Any radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or concentration as may 

exceed limits established by the public works supervisor in compliance with 

applicable state or federal regulations. 

h. Quantities of flow, concentrations, or both which constitute a “slug” as 

defined herein. 

i. Waters or wastes containing substances which are not amenable to 

treatment or reduction by the wastewater treatment processes employed, or 

are amenable to treatment only to such a degree that the wastewater 

treatment plant effluent cannot meet the requirements of other agencies 

having jurisdiction over discharge to the receiving waters. 

j. Any water or wastes which, by interaction with other water or wastes in the 

public sewer system, release poisonous or obnoxious gases, form suspended 

solids which interfere with the collection system, or create a condition 

deleterious to structures and treatment processes. 

k. Any wastes which are not susceptible to treatment or which interfere with 

the biological processes or efficiency of the treatment system or will pass 

through the system causing a violation of the City’s NPDES permit. 

5. If any waters or wastes are discharged, or are proposed to be discharged to the 

public sewers, which waters contain the substances or possess the characteristics 

enumerated in subsection (4) of this section, and which in the judgment of the 

public works supervisor, may have a deleterious effect upon the wastewater 

facilities, processes, equipment, or receiving waters, or which otherwise create a 

hazard to life or constitute a public nuisance, the public works supervisor may: 

a. Reject the wastes; 



12 

b. Require pretreatment to an acceptable condition for discharge to the public 

sewers; 

c. Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge; and/or 

d. Require payment to cover the added costs of handling and treating the 

wastes not covered by sewer charges. 

If the public works supervisor permits the pretreatment or equalization of waste 

flows, the design and installation of the plants and equipment shall be subject to the 

review and approval of the public works supervisor and the State Department of 

Health. 

6. Grease, oil, and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the 

public works supervisor, they are necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes 

containing floatable grease in excessive amounts as specified herein, or any 

flammable wastes, sand, or other harmful ingredients; except that such interceptors 

shall not be required for private living quarters of dwelling units. All interceptors 

shall be of a type and capacity approved by the state plumbing code and shall be 

located as to be readily and easily accessible for cleaning and inspection. In the 

maintaining of these interceptors, the owner shall be responsible for the proper 

removal and disposal by appropriate means of the collected material and shall 

maintain records of the dates and means of disposal which are subject to review by 

the public works supervisor. Any removal of the collected materials not performed 

by owner’s personnel must be performed by a licensed waste disposal firms. 

7. Where pretreatment or flow-equalizing facilities are provided or required by any 

waters or wastes, they shall be maintained continuously in satisfactory and effective 

operation by the owner at the owner’s expense. 

8. When required by the public works supervisor, the owner of any property serviced 

by a building sewer carrying industrial wastes shall install a suitable structure 

together with such necessary meters and other appurtenances in the building sewer 

to facilitate observation, sampling, and measurement of the wastes. Such structures, 

when required, shall be accessibly and safely located, and shall be constructed in 

accordance with plans approved by the public works supervisor. The structure shall 

be installed by the owner at the owner’s expense, and shall be maintained by the 

owner so as to be safe and accessible at all times. 

9. The public works supervisor may require a user of sewer services to provide 

information needed to determine compliance with this section. These requirements 

may include: 

a. Wastewaters discharge peak rate and volume over a specified time period. 

b. Chemical analyses of wastewaters. 

c. Information on raw materials, processes, and products affecting wastewater 

volume and quality. 



13 

d. Quantity and disposition of specific liquid, slug, oil, solvent, or other 

materials important to sewer use control. 

e. A plot plan of sewers of the user’s property showing sewer and pretreatment 

facility location. 

f. Details of wastewater pretreatment facilities. 

g. Details of systems to prevent and control the losses of materials through 

spills to the municipal sewer. 

10. All measurements, tests, and analyses of the characteristics of waters and wastes to 

which reference is made in this section shall be determined in accordance with the 

latest edition of “Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Waste 

Water” published by the American Public Health Association. Sampling methods, 

location, times, durations, and frequencies are to be determined on an individual 

basis by the public works supervisor. 

11. No statement contained in this section shall be construed as preventing any special 

agreement or arrangement between the City and any industrial concern whereby an 

industrial waste of unusual strength or character may be accepted by the City for 

treatment. 

9-0107. WASTE PROHIBITED FROM BEING DISCHARGED TO THE 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT SYSTEM. The discharge of wastes containing materials in 

such quantities to be detrimental to the bacterial activity required for wastewater treatment is 

hereby prohibited. The discharge of wastes which cause or are likely to cause maintenance 

problems, such as hindering flow, blocking pipes, and/or clogging pumps, is hereby prohibited. 

The discharge of liquid or vapor, having a temperature higher than one hundred fifty (150) degrees 

Fahrenheit or which liquid or vapor could interfere with the operation of the controls for either a 

pumping station or the treatment facilities, shall be prohibited. 

9-0108.  CERTAIN DISCHARGES OF STORM SEWER WATER DEEMED 

NUISANCE. 

1. Discharges of storm water, groundwater, roof runoff, yard drainage, yard fountain 

or pond overflow, or other surface runoff waters into areas with inadequate drainage 

tend to create a harborage for insect and vermin infestations and are hereby deemed 

a nuisance. No owner, occupant, or user of property therefore may discharge any 

storm water, groundwater, roof runoff, yard drainage, yard fountain or pond 

overflow, or other surface runoff waters in such a manner so as to allow the 

collection of the same on their property or other properties without proper drainage. 

Discharges of storm water, groundwater, roof runoff, yard drainage, yard fountain 

or pond overflow, or other surface runoff waters by the use of such devices as sump 

pumps must be made directly into the storm sewer system of the City of Horace or 

drainage ditches which run thereto. 

2. No owner, occupant, or user of property abutting Park District property of the City 

of Horace shall cause or allow water from any spout, sump pump, or similar device 



14 

to be directly or indirectly deposited on the Park District property. Similarly, no 

person shall deposit snow, earth, construction material, or other substance on Park 

District property of the City of Horace without written permission from the City 

Auditor. Notwithstanding such written permission issued, no person shall deposit 

any material containing salt, sand, or other substance which may be harmful to 

vegetation or other Park District property. 

3. The City Auditor shall have the authority to issue letters to violators of this section. 

If the violation is not abated within the time set forth in the notice of violation, the 

City Attorney is authorized to prosecute such offenses in the Horace Municipal 

Court or to seek abatement in the District Court. 

9-0109. POWER AND AUTHORITY OF INSPECTORS. 

1. The public works supervisor, or designee, bearing proper credentials and 

identification shall be permitted to enter all properties for the purposes of 

inspection, observation, measurement, sampling, and testing pertinent to discharge 

to the community system in accordance with the provisions of this section. 

2. The public works supervisor, or designee, is authorized to obtain information 

concerning industrial processes which have a direct bearing on the kind and source 

of discharge to the wastewater collection system. The industry may withhold 

information considered confidential. The industry must establish that the revelation 

to the public of the information in question might result in a fiscal advantage to 

competitors. 

3. While performing the necessary work on private properties referred to in subsection 

(1) of this section, the public works supervisor, or designee, shall observe all safety 

rules applicable to the premises established by the company, and the company shall 

be held harmless for injury or death to the City employees, and the City shall 

indemnify the company against loss or damage to its property by City employees 

and against liability claims and demands for personal injury or property damage 

asserted against the company growing out of the gauging and sampling operation, 

except as may be caused by negligence or failure of the company to maintain safe 

conditions. 

4. The public works supervisor, or designee, shall be permitted to enter all private 

properties through which the City holds a duly negotiated easement for the purposes 

of, but not limited to, inspection, observation, measurement, sampling, repair, and 

maintenance of any portion of the wastewater facilities lying within said easement. 

All entry and subsequent work, if any, on said easement, shall be done in full 

accordance with the terms of the duly negotiated easement pertaining to the private 

property involved. 

9-0110. MONTHLY CHARGES FOR SEWER SERVICE. 

1. Sewer charges shall be on a monthly basis covering the respective monthly periods 

each year. The term “residential” as used herein shall include all premises occupied 

and used exclusively as a home by not more than two (2) families. The term “non-



15 

residential” shall include all other premises. When a charge is determined by 

metered water consumption, the amount of water on which the charge is based shall 

be that multiple of one thousand (1,000) gallons closest to the actual meter reading.  

2. The owner or occupant of each residential or non-residential premises connected 

with the sewer system of the City shall pay a minimum service charge per month 

as set by resolution of the City Council.  

3. In addition to the minimum service charge, all residential premises shall pay an 

additional charge as set by resolution of the City Council per one thousand (1,000) 

gallons for flows greater than ten thousand (10,000) gallons of water per month.  

4. In addition to the minimum service charge, all non-residential premises shall pay 

an additional charge as set by resolution of the City Council per one thousand 

(1,000) gallons for all flows greater than one thousand (1,000) gallons of water per 

month. 

9-0111. SEWER RATES AND CHARGES – BILLING. The City Auditor shall 

render a statement at the end of the first full week of each month setting forth separately the charges 

for water and for sewage service for the preceding month to each premise connected with the water 

or sewage system.  

9-0112. WHEN BILL DUE: FAILURE TO PAY. All bills for water service, sewage 

service, charges and rentals, and water deliveries and labor and materials furnished each month 

shall be due and payable on the 25th day of the month at the office of the City Auditor. A monthly 

late fee, in an amount set by resolution of the City Council, will be assessed for all payments 

received after the 25th day of the month. If such bills, or any part thereof, are not paid within sixty 

(60) days of the date of the bill, the City will provide written notice, at least ten (10) days prior 

thereto, of the City’s intent to shut off the supply of water to the premises for which the bill is 

rendered and shall not be turned on again until the entire balance has been paid, together with an 

amount as set by resolution of the City Council for recontinuing the service. A fee will also be 

charged for all returned checks and returned ACH payments, as set by resolution of the City 

Council. 

9-0113. LIABILITY OF OWNERS AND OCCUPANTS FOR SERVICES. The 

owner and occupant of each premises shall be jointly and severally liable for all charges for water 

and sewage service and garbage during the period of their respective ownership or occupancy. 

Water will not be furnished to any property which is indebted to the City. 

9-0114. CITY’S AND CUSTOMER’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR REPAIRS TO 

SEWER LINES. The City shall be responsible for maintenance and repair of leaks or other defects 

in the sewer main. The property owner shall be responsible for maintenance and repairs of leaks 

or other defects from the end of the wye on the sewer main to the premises. Property owners are 

responsible for the service line from the main including the hole in the main and the wye.  If there 

is a leak and it cannot be determined as to whether the leak is in that part of the line for which the 

City or the owner has responsibility for repair and maintenance, the City may make the necessary 

excavation, and if such leak is found to be in the service line on the owner’s property, the owner 

shall immediately repair such leak, backfill such excavation, and pay the City for the cost of 



16 

making the excavation. The City may shut off the water service on any owner who fails or neglects 

to repair a leak for which they are responsible for maintenance or who fails to pay the cost of the 

City in making the excavation to determine the location of the leak if the leak is on the property of 

the owner. 

9-0102. GARBAGE SERVICE. Any person with water service requesting not to have 

garbage picked up at the water connected address should notify the City Auditor, at which time 

the City Auditor will notify the waste company hired not to pick up any garbage from the person 

requesting this said item. 

 Any person with water service with no garbage pick-up will be responsible for the removal 

of any garbage without use of the City dumpsters or another resident’s curbside pick-up place. 

9-0103.  DISCHARGE. No person may discharge or cause to be discharged, any storm 

water, groundwater, roof runoff, yard drainage, yard fountain or pond overflow, or other surface 

waters into the sanitary collection system of the City of Horace between the dates of March 1 to 

November 30 during any calendar year. Before March 1, 2002, any persons, firm or corporation 

having a roof, sump pump, swimming pool discharge, or surface drain now connected and/or 

discharging into the sanitary sewer system shall disconnect and/or remove the same. Any 

disconnects or openings in the sanitary sewer system shall be closed or repaired in an effective, 

workmanlike manner, as approved by the City Engineer for the City of Horace. 

1. Every person owning improved real estate that discharges into the City’s sanitary 

sewer system shall allow City employee(s) to inspect the building to confirm that 

there is no sump pump or other prohibited discharge into the sanitary sewer system 

during the prohibited time period. Any person refusing to allow their property to be 

inspected within fourteen (14) days of the date City employee(s) are denied 

admittance to the property shall immediately become subject to a surcharge 

hereinafter provided for.  

2. A surcharge of $100.00 per month is hereby imposed and added to every sewer 

billing mailed on and after March 1, 2002, to property owners who are not in 

compliance with Paragraph 1 of this section. The surcharge shall be added every 

month through November, 2002, until and unless the property is in compliance. The 

surcharge shall continue to be levied monthly for the months of March through 

November (both inclusive) for every year on properties not complying with 

paragraph 1 of this section. Provided, the surcharge shall not be charged unless a 

property has been inspected and found not to be in compliance, or if the person 

owning improved real estate refuses to allow an inspection. 

3. When a structure is being constructed in the City of Horace, if at or prior to final 

inspection City staff determine that the sump pump connection has been illegally 

connected to the City’s sanitary sewer system such that there will be a permanent 

discharge into the City’s sanitary sewer system, there shall be levied a $500 

administrative fine against the general contractor for the structure found to be in 

violation. If after 24 hours after written notice from the City the general contractor 

has not remedied the situation so that the sump pump connection can be arranged 

so that no surface runoff or groundwater can enter into the City’s sanitary sewer 



17 

system from May 1 to November 30 of each year, there shall be an additional $100 

administrative fine for each day such a violation exists. In addition, the Building 

Inspector shall not issue another building permit within the jurisdiction of the 

Building Inspector of the City of Horace for that contractor until the violation has 

been remedied and any administrative fine has been fully paid to the City. A 

contractor who is informed of the administrative penalty shall have seven (7) days 

from the date of his notification of the same to request, in writing, a hearing on the 

issue of whether or not the basis for the administrative penalty actually exists. Such 

letter must be filed with the City Auditor of the City of Horace. Upon receipt of 

such a letter, in a timely fashion the City Auditor shall set the matter for hearing at 

the next City Council meeting. The contractor claiming that the basis for the penalty 

is incorrect shall have the burden at that hearing to establish that the violation set 

forth by the City staff is, in fact, incorrect. The City Council shall either confirm 

the determination of violation by City staff or modify or eliminate the penalty if the 

evidence is such that it establishes no violation occurred. 

9-0104.  CERTAIN DISCHARGES OF STORM SEWER WATER DEEMED 

NUISANCE. 

1. Discharges of storm water, groundwater, roof runoff, yard drainage, yard fountain 

or pond overflow, or other surface runoff waters into areas with inadequate drainage 

tend to create a harborage for insect and vermin infestations and are hereby deemed 

a nuisance. No owner, occupant or user of property therefore may discharge any 

storm water, groundwater, roof runoff, yard drainage, yard fountain or pond 

overflow, or other surface runoff waters in such a manner so as to allow the 

collection of the same on their property or other properties without proper drainage. 

Discharges of storm water, groundwater, roof runoff, yard drainage, yard fountain 

or pond overflow, or other surface runoff waters by the use of such devices as sump 

pumps must be made directly into the storm sewer system of the City of Horace or 

drainage ditches which run thereto. 

2. No owner, occupant, or user of property abutting Park District property of the City 

of Horace shall cause or allow water from any spout, sump pump, or similar device 

to be directly or indirectly deposited on the Park District property. Similarly, no 

person shall deposit snow, earth, construction material, or other substance on Park 

District property of the City of Horace without written permission from the City 

Auditor of the City of Horace. Notwithstanding such written permission issued, no 

person shall deposit any material containing salt, sand, or other substance which 

may be harmful to vegetation or other Park District property. 

3. The City Auditor of the City of Horace shall have the authority to issue letters to 

violators of this section. If the violation is not abated within the time set forth in the 

notice of violation, the City Attorney is authorized to prosecute such offenses in the 

Horace Municipal Court or to seek abatement in the District Court. 

9-01050115. PENALTY. A violation of this chapter may be punishable as an infraction 

as set forth in Section 1-0211 of these ordinances.  



18 

1. Any person found to be violating any provision of this section shall be served by 

the City with written notice stating the nature of the violation and providing a 

reasonable time limit not to exceed thirty (30) days for the satisfactory correction 

thereof. The offender shall, within the period of time states in such notice, 

permanently cease all violations. 

2. During the 30-day period, if the cited user is in disagreement with the public works 

supervisor’s findings, the user may appeal to the City Council. The City Council 

shall upon receipt of an appeal, convene a meeting for the purpose of resolving the 

dispute within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the appeal. The City Council shall: 

a. Issue notices of hearings requesting the attendance and testimony of 

witnesses and the production of evidence relevant to any matter involved in 

any hearing.  

b. Take evidence. 

c. Take a transcript of the proceedings for the public record. 

d. Based on all evidence and testimony received, the City Council shall make 

a decision and notify both parties of such a decision. 

3. Any person who shall continue any violation beyond the time limit in subsection 9-

0115(2) (30 days) shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 

4. Any person who has appealed to the City Council and lost the appeal shall have 

fifteen (15) days in which to take action to correct the person’s violation. At the 

end of fifteen (15) days if no action is taken the violator shall be guilty of a 

misdemeanor. 

1.5. Any person violating any of the provisions of this section shall become liable to the 

City for any expense, loss, or damage occasioned the City by reason of such 

violation. 

SECTION 2.  Section 9-0229 of Title IX of the Revised Ordinances of 2003 of the City of 

Horace, North Dakota, is hereby created and enacted to read as follows: 

9-0229. GARBAGE SERVICE. Any person with water service requesting not to have 

garbage picked up at the water connected address should notify the City Auditor, at which time 

the City Auditor will notify the waste company hired not to pick up any garbage from the person 

requesting this said item. 

 Any person with water service with no garbage pick-up will be responsible for the removal 

of any garbage without use of the City dumpsters or another resident’s curbside pick-up place. 

SECTION 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and 

after the date of its final passage and publication.  



19 

       APPROVED:  

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       Kory Peterson 

       Mayor of Horace, North Dakota 

  



20 

ATTEST:  

 

 

______________________________ 

Brenton Holper 

Horace City Auditor  

 

 

Date of First Reading:  

 

Date of Second Reading:  

 

Date of Publication: 



 

 

MEMO 
 
To:  Horace City Council 
  (Via email:  Bholper@cityofhorace.com)   
 
From:  James Dahlman, PE 
 
Date:  March 31, 2023 
 
Re:  Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street Improvement District No. 2022-9 
  (63rd Street – 88th Avenue to 76th Avenue) 
  Plans and Specifications 
  Horace, North Dakota 
  ER22-00-134 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
Please find an example plan sheet attached for the above referenced project. 
 
This is being presented for your information, review, and comments. 
 
The anticipated project schedule is: 

• April 3, 2023  - approve plans and specifications. 
• April 12, 2023 - advertise in the paper. 
• April 19, 2023 - advertise in the paper. 
• April 26, 2023 - advertise in the paper.  
• May 11, 2023 - open bids.  
• October 28, 2024 - Milestone 1substantial completion 
• July 13, 2024  - substantial completion. 
• July 27, 2024  - final completion. 

 
Milestone 1 consists of all improvements within the project area except for the following: 
 Final stabilization, pavement, curb and gutter, signing, striping, landscaping, and lighting. 
 
I recommend: 

1. Approve the plans and specifications. 
2. Direct the auditor to advertise for bids. 

 
If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me at (701) 532-0438. 
 

           Jad













ORDINANCE NO. 2022-17 
  
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REENACT CHAPTER 9-01 OF TITLE IX OF THE 
REVISED ORDINANCES OF 2003 OF THE CITY OF HORACE, NORTH DAKOTA, 
RELATING TO SEWER AND GARBAGE SERVICE AND TO CREATE AND ENACT 
SECTION 9-0229 OF TITLE IX OF THE REVISED ORDINANCES OF 2003 OF THE CITY 
OF HORACE, NORTH DAKOTA, RELATING TO WATER SERVICE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HORACE, NORTH 
DAKOTA:  
 

SECTION 1.  Chapter 9-01 of Title IX of the Revised Ordinances of 2003 of the City of 

Horace, North Dakota, is hereby amended and reenacted to read as follows: 

CHAPTER 9-01 
 

GARBAGE AND SEWER SERVICE 
 
SECTIONS:  
 

9-0101. Sewer Service Connection, Repairs, and Rates. 
9-0102. Garbage ServiceDefinitions. 
9-0103. DischargeConnection to Public Sewers Required.  
9-0104. Certain Discharges of Storm Sewer Water Deemed NuisancePrivate 

Wastewater Disposal. 
9-0105. PenaltyProcedure and Cost for Connection to Sewer Lines. 
9-0106. Use of Public Sewers. 
9-0107. Waste Prohibited from Being Discharged to the Wastewater Treatment 

System. 
9-0108. Certain Discharges of Storm Sewer Water Deemed Nuisance. 
9-0109. Power and Authority of Inspectors. 
9-0110. Monthly Charges for Sewer Service. 
9-0111. Sewer Rates and Charges – Billing. 
9-0112. When Bill Due: Failure to Pay. 
9-0113. Liability of Owners and Occupants for Services. 
9-0114. City’s and Customer’s Responsibilities for Repairs to Sewer Lines. 
9-0115. Penalty. 

 
 
9-0101. SEWER SERVICE CONNECTION, REPAIRS, AND RATES. The City 

Council of the City of Horace shall, by resolution,hereby establishes the procedure and cost for 
connection to sewer lines in the City of Horace, sets the monthly charges for sewer service, and 
sets out the City’s and customer’s responsibilities for repairs to sewer lines. 



2 

9-0102. DEFINITIONS. The following words, terms, and phrases, when used in this 
chapter, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly 
indicates a different meaning: 

1. “Building drain” means that part of the lowest horizontal piping of a drainage 
system which receives the discharge from soil, waste, and other drainage pipes 
inside the walls of the building and conveys it to the building sewer, beginning 
ten feet (10’) outside the inner face of the building wall. 

2. “Building sewer” means the extension from the building drain to the public 
sewer or other place of disposal, also called house connection. 

2.3. “Clearwater” means the discharge from a sump pump.  

3.4. “Combined sewer” means a sewer intended to receive both wastewater and 
stormwater or ground water. 

4.5. “Cooling water” means the water discharged from any use such as air 
conditioning, cooling or refrigeration, during which the only pollutant added to 
the water is heat. 

5.6. “Floatable oil” means oil, fat, or grease in a physical state such that it will 
separate by gravity from wastewater by treatment in an approved pretreatment 
facility. Wastewater shall be considered free of floatable fat if it is properly 
pretreated and the wastewater does not interfere with the collection system. 

6.7. “Garbage” means the animal and vegetable waste resulting from handling, 
preparation, cooking, and serving of foods. 

7.8. “Industrial wastes” mean the wastewater from industrial processes, trade, or 
business as distinct from domestic or sanitary wastes. 

8.9. “National pollutant discharge elimination system (NPDES)” means the 
program for issuing, conditioning, and denying permits for the discharge of 
pollutants from point sources into the navigable waters, the contiguous zone, and 
the oceans pursuant to section 402 of the Clean Water Act. 

9.10. “Natural outlet” means any outlet, including storm sewers and combined sewer 
overflows, into a watercourse, pond, ditch, lake, or other body of surface or 
groundwater. 

10.11. “Pretreatment” means application of physical, chemical, and biological 
processes to reduce the amount of pollutants in or alter the nature of the pollutant 
properties in wastewater prior to discharging such wastewater into the publicly 
owned wastewater treatment system. 

11.12. “Pretreatment standards” means all applicable federal rules and regulations 
implementing section 307 of the Clean Water Act, as well as any nonconflicting 



3 

state or local standards. In cases of conflicting standards of regulations, the more 
stringent thereof shall be applied. 

12.13. “Properly shredded garbage” means the wastes from the preparation, cooking, 
and dispensing of food that have been shredded to such a degree that all particles 
will be carried freely under the flow conditions normally prevailing in public 
sewers, with no particle greater than one-half inch (1/2”) in any dimension. 

13.14. “Public sewer” means a common sewer controlled by a governmental agency or 
public utility. 

14.15. “Public Works Supervisor” means the supervisor of City public infrastructure 
including but not limited to water, sewers, and streets. The public works 
supervisor oversees employees in this department and reports to the City 
Administrator and/or City Council. 

15.16. “Radioactive wastes” means radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or 
concentration that they do not comply with regulations or orders issued by the 
appropriated authority having control over their use and which will or may cause 
damage or hazards to the sewerage facilities or personnel operating the system. 

16.17. “Sanitary sewer” means a sewer that carries liquid and water-carried wastes 
from residences, commercial buildings, industrial plants, and institutions together 
with minor quantities of groundwater, stormwater, and surface water that are not 
admitted intentionally. 

17.18. “Sewage” means the spent water of a community. The preferred term is 
“wastewater.” 

18.19. “Sewer” means a pipe or conduit that carries wastewater or drainage water. 

19.20. “Significant industrial user” means any industrial user of the City’s wastewater 
treatment system whose flow exceeds: 

a. Fifty thousand (50,000) gallons per day; or 

b. Five percent (5%) of the daily capacity of the treatment system. 

20.21. “Slug discharge” means any discharge of water or wastewater which in 
concentration of any given constituent or in quantity of flow exceeds for any 
period of duration longer than fifteen (15) minutes more than five (5) times the 
average twenty four (24) hour concentration of flows during normal operation and 
shall adversely affect the collection system and/or performance of the waste water 
treatment works. 

21.22. “Storm drain” (sometimes termed “storm sewer”) means a drain or sewer for 
conveying water, groundwater, subsurface water, or unpolluted water from any 
source. 



4 

22.23. “Suspended solids” means total suspended matter that either floats on the surface 
of, or is in suspension in water, wastewater, or other liquids, and that is removable 
by laboratory filtering. 

23.24. “Unpolluted water” means water of quality equal to or better than the effluent 
criteria in effect or water that would not cause violation of receiving water quality 
standards and would not be benefited by discharge to the sanitary sewers and 
wastewater treatment facilities provided. 

24.25. “User” means any person who discharges, causes, or permits the discharge of 
wastewater into the City’s waste water treatment system. 

25.26. “Wastewater” means the spent water of a community. From the standpoint of 
source, it may be a combination of the liquid and water-carried wastes from 
residences, commercial buildings, industrial plants, and institutions, together with 
any groundwater, surface water, and stormwater that may be present. 

26.27. “Wastewater facilities” means the structures, equipment, and processes required 
to collect, carry away, and treat domestic and industrial wastes and dispose of the 
effluent. 

27.28. “Wastewater treatment works” means an arrangement of devices and structures 
for treating wastewater, industrial wastes, and slug. The term “wastewater 
treatment works” sometimes used as synonymous with “waste treatment plant” or 
“wastewater treatment plant” or “water pollution control plant.” 

28.29. “Watercourse” means a natural or artificial channel for the passage of water 
either continuously or intermittently. 

Terms not otherwise defined herein shall be as adopted in the latest edition of Standard Methods 
for the Examination of Water and Wastewater, published by the American Public Health 
Association, the American Water Works Association, and the Water Pollution Control 
Federation. 

9-0103. CONNECTION TO PUBLIC SEWERS REQUIRED. 

1. It is unlawful for any person to place, deposit, or permit to be deposited in any 
unsanitary manner on public or private property within the City of Horace, or in 
any area under the jurisdiction of the City, any human or animal excrement, 
garbage, or other objectionable waste. 

2. It is unlawful to discharge to any natural outlet within the City, or in any area under 
the jurisdiction of the City, any sewage or other polluted waters except where 
suitable treatment has been provided in accordance with subsequent provisions of 
this ordinance. 

3. Except as hereinafter provided, it shall be unlawful to construct or maintain any 
privy, privy vault, septic tank, cesspool, or other facility intended or used for the 
disposal of wastewater. 



5 

4. The owner of all houses, buildings, or properties used for human occupancy, 
employment, recreation, or other purposes, in the City and abutting on any street, 
alley, or right-of-way in which there is now located or may in the future be located 
a public sanitary or combined sewer of the City, is hereby required at the owner’s 
expense to install suitable toilet facilities therein, and to connect such facilities 
directly with the proper public sewer in accordance with the provisions of this 
ordinance, within sixty (60) days after the date of official notice to do so, provided 
that said public sewer is within two hundred (200) feet of the property line. 

9-0104. PRIVATE WASTEWATER DISPOSAL. 

1. Where a public sanitary or combined sewer is not readily available, the building 
sewer shall be connected to a private wastewater disposal system complying with 
the provisions of this section.  

2. Before commencement of construction of a private wastewater disposal system, the 
owner shall first obtain a written permit signed by Fargo Cass Public Health. The 
application for such permit shall be made on a form furnished by Fargo Cass Public 
Health, which the applicant shall supplement with any plans, specifications, and 
other information as are deemed necessary by Fargo Cass Public Health and the 
City. A permit and inspection fee as set by resolution of the City Council shall be 
paid to the City at the time the application is filed.  

3. A permit for a private wastewater disposal system shall not become effective until 
the installation is completed to the satisfaction of Fargo Cass Public Health. Fargo 
Cass Public Health shall be allowed to inspect the work at any stage of construction, 
and in any event, the applicant for the permit shall notify Fargo Cass Public Health 
when the work is ready for final inspection, and before any underground portions 
are covered. The inspection shall be made within twenty-four (24) hours of the 
receipt of notice by the City.  

4. The type, capacities, location, and layout of a private wastewater disposal system 
shall comply with all recommendations and/or regulations of Fargo Cass Public 
Health. A permit shall not be issued for any private wastewater disposal system not 
meeting these conditions. A septic tank or cesspool shall not be permitted to 
discharge to any natural outlet or to the ground surface.  

5. At such time as a public sewer becomes available to a property served by a private 
wastewater disposal system, as provided in this Section, a direct connection shall 
be made to the public sewer within two (2) years or until tank failure, whichever 
occurs later, in compliance with this ordinance, and any septic tanks, cesspools, and 
similar private wastewater disposal facilities shall be cleaned of slug and filled with 
suitable material.  

2.6. The owner shall operate and maintain the private wastewater disposal facilities in 
a sanitary manner at all times, at no expense to the City. All slug or solids, to be 
disposed of from a septic tank, cesspool, or other individual method of disposal 
shall be disposed of by a licensed septic tank pumper.  



6 

3.7. Statements contained in this section shall not be construed to interfere with any 
additional requirements that may be imposed by the local health officer, Fargo Cass 
Public Health. 

9-0105. PROCEDURE AND COST FOR CONNECTION TO SEWER LINES.  

1. Unauthorized persons shall not uncover, make any connections with or opening 
into, use, alter, or disturb any public sewer or appurtenance thereof without first 
obtaining a written permit from the City.  

2. Sewer service connection permits shall not be issued by the City until a fee for each 
connection shall have been paid for such permit. Fees shall be set by resolution of 
the City Council. 

3. Costs and expenses incidental to the installation and connection of the building 
sewer shall be the sole responsibility of the owner. The owner shall indemnify the 
City from any loss or damage that may directly or indirectly be occasioned by the 
installation of the building sewer.  

4. A separate and independent building sewer shall be provided for every building; 
except where one (1) building stands at the rear of another on an interior lot and 
private sewer is not available or can be constructed to the rear building through an 
adjoining alley, court, yard, or driveway, the building sewer from the front building 
may be extended to the rear building and the whole considered as one (1) building 
sewer, but the City does not and will not assume any obligation or responsibility 
for damage caused by or resulting from any such single connection aforementioned.  

5. Old building sewers may be used in connection with new buildings only when they 
are found, on examination and test, to meet all requirements of this ordinance.  

6. The size, slope, alignment, materials of construction of all sanitary sewers including 
building sewers, and the methods to be used in excavating, placing of the pipe, 
joints, testing, and backfilling the trench, shall all conform to the requirements of 
the building and plumbing code or other applicable rules and regulations of the 
City. Pipe used in the construction or reconstruction of structures shall be Schedule 
40. In the absence of suitable code provisions set forth in appropriate specifications 
of the American Society for Testing and Materials and Water Pollution Control 
Federation Manual Practice No. 9 shall apply.  

7. Whenever possible, the building sewer shall be brought to the building at an 
elevation below the basement floor. In all buildings in which any building drain is 
too low to permit gravity flow to the public sewer, sanitary sewage carried by such 
building drain shall be lifted by an approved means and discharged to the building 
sewer.  

8. Persons shall not make connection of roof downspouts, foundation drains, areaway 
drains, or other sources of surface runoff or groundwater to a building sewer, or 
building drain which in turn is connected directly or indirectly to a public sanitary 



7 

or clearwater sewer unless such connection is approved by the City and the North 
Dakota State Department of Health, except as provided hereafter: 

a. The public works supervisor is authorized to issue a permit to allow a 
property owner to discharge water into the sanitary water system. Prior to 
the issuance of the permit, the public works supervisor, or designee, shall 
verify that the criteria set forth in subsection (c) of this section has been 
satisfied. The permit shall authorize such discharge only from November 
15 through March 15 of each year and the owner and property shall be 
subject to such monthly winter discharge fee as established by resolution of 
the City Council. 

b. The winter discharge permit shall further require the owner to permit an 
inspection of the property on March 16 or as soon thereafter as possible by 
the public works supervisor, or designee, to determine that the discharge 
into the sanitary sewer has been discontinued. In lieu of having the City 
inspect the property, a person may furnish a certificate from a licensed 
plumber certifying that their property is in compliance with this section. In 
the event the owner refuses that inspection (or fails to furnish a plumber’s 
certificate and photograph of the discharge in lieu thereof) or fails to 
discontinue the discharge into the sanitary sewer, the owner and property 
shall be subject to such increase in fee as established by resolution. A 
nonrefundable increased fee as established by resolution of the City Council 
will commence with the April water and sewer billing and continue until 
the property owner establishes compliance with this section. 

c. For a property owner to be eligible for a winter discharge permit, the water 
being discharged from the sump pump or footing drain cannot be readily 
discharged into a storm drain or other acceptable drainage system and at 
least one (1) of the following criteria must be met: 

(1) The freezing of the surface water discharge from the sump pump or 
footing drain is causing a dangerous condition, such as ice buildup 
or flooding, on either public or private property; 

(2) The property owner has demonstrated that there is danger that the 
sump pump or footing drain pipes will freeze up and result in either 
failure or damage to the sump pump unit or the footing drain and 
cause basement flooding. 

d. If the public works supervisor, or designee, determines that a sump pump 
or footing drain is causing an icy condition on streets or sidewalks between 
November 15 to March 15, the public works supervisor may require the 
property owner to obtain a discharge permit and discharge the owner’s sump 
pump into the sanitary sewer system following ten (10) days’ written notice 
and an opportunity for the property owner to be heard. 



8 

e. Any property with a sump pump found not in compliance with this section, 
but subsequently verified as compliant shall be subject to an annual 
inspection to confirm continued compliance. Any property found not to be 
in compliance upon reinspection, or a person refusing to allow their 
property to be reinspected within thirty (30) days after receipt of mailed 
written notice from the City of the reinspection, shall be subject to the 
nonrefundable fee set forth in subsection (b) of this section. 

f. The public works supervisor, or designee, showing proper credentials and 
identification, shall be permitted to enter all properties for the purpose of 
inspection and observation to identify prohibited discharges into the 
sanitary sewer system. Any person may furnish a certificate from a licensed 
plumber certifying their property is in compliance with this section, in lieu 
of having the City inspect their property. Any person refusing to allow their 
property to be inspected [or failing to furnish a plumber’s certificate thereof 
within fourteen (14) days from the date the public works supervisor, or 
designee, is denied admittance to the property] shall immediately become 
subject to the increased penalty provided for in subsection (b) of this 
section, which shall continue until proof of compliance with this section has 
been provided to the City. 

9. The connection of the building sewer into the public sewer shall conform to the 
requirements of the building and plumbing code or other applicable rules and 
regulations of the City, or the procedures set forth in appropriate specifications of 
the A.S.T.M. and the W.P.C.F. Manual of Practice No. 9. All such connections shall 
be made gas-tight and watertight and verified by proper testing. Any deviation from 
the prescribed procedures and materials must be approved by the City before 
installation.  

10. The applicant for the building sewer permit shall notify the City when the building 
sewer is ready for inspection and connection to the public sewer. The connection 
and testing shall be made under the supervision of the City.  

11. Excavations for building sewer installation shall be adequately guarded with 
barricades and lights so as to protect the public from hazard. Streets, sidewalks, 
parkways, and other public property disturbed in the course of the work shall be 
restored in a manner satisfactory to the City. 

9-0106. USE OF PUBLIC SEWERS.  

1. No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any unpolluted waters such as 
stormwater, surface water, groundwater, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, or 
cooling water to any building drain or sewer which in turn is connected directly or 
indirectly to the sanitary sewer unless such connection is approved by the City. 

2. Stormwater, other than that exempted, and all other unpolluted drainage shall be 
discharged to such sewers as are specifically designated as combined sewers or 



9 

storm sewers, or to a natural outlet approved by the public works supervisor or 
designee. 

3. No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged any of the following described 
water or wastes to any public sewers: 

a. Solid or viscous wastes. Solid or viscous wastes which will or may cause 
obstruction to the flow in a sewer, or otherwise interfere with the proper 
operation of the wastewater treatment system. Prohibited materials include, 
but are not limited to, grease, uncomminuted garbage, animal guts or 
tissues, paunch manure, bones, hair, hides or fleshings, entrails, whole 
blood, feathers, ashes, cinders, sand, spent lime, stone or marble dust, metal, 
glass, straw, shavings, grass clippings, rags, spent grains, spent hops, waste 
paper, wood, plastic, tar, asphalt residues, residues from refining or 
processing of fuel or lubricating oil, and similar substances. 

b. Improperly shredded garbage. Garbage that has not been ground or 
comminuted to such a degree that all particles will be carried freely in 
suspension under flow conditions normally prevailing in the public sewers, 
with no particle greater than one-half inch (1/2”) in any dimension. 

c. Corrosive wastes. Any waste which will cause corrosion or deterioration of 
the treatment system. 

(1) All wastes discharged to the public sewer system must have a pH 
value in the range of six (6) to nine (9) standard units, except as 
otherwise provided herein. Prohibited materials, include, but are not 
limited to, acids, sulfides, concentrated chloride and fluoride 
compounds, and substances which will react with water to form 
acidic products. 

(2) When authorized by special permit issued by the public works 
supervisor, wastes discharged to the publicly owned treatment 
works may exceed a pH value up to (10.5), provided that pH value 
testing of the City sewer shall be done at least four (4) times per year 
by the industry receiving the special permit. The test shall be taken 
at the nearest access hole on the downstream side of the sewer 
service for the particular building or site for which the special permit 
was issued. 

d. Toxic substances. Any water containing toxic or poisonous solids, liquids, 
or gases in sufficient quantity, either singly or by interaction with other 
wastes, to injure or interfere with any sewage treatment process, constitute 
a hazard to humans or animals, create a public nuisance, or create any 
hazard in the receiving waters of the wastewater treatment plant. 

e. Explosive mixtures. Liquids, solids, or gases which by reason of their nature 
or quantity are, or may be sufficient either alone or by interaction with other 
substances to cause fire or explosion or be injurious in any other way to the 



10 

sewerage facilities or to the operation of the system. At no time shall two 
(2) successive readings on an explosion hazard meter, at the point of 
discharge into the sewer system, be more than five percent (5%) nor any 
single reading over ten percent (10%) of the lower explosive limit (L.E.L.) 
of the meter. Prohibited materials include, but are not limited to gasoline, 
kerosene, naphtha, benzene, toluene, zylene, ethers, alcohols, ketones, 
aldehydes, peroxides, chlorates, perchlorates, bromates, carbides, hydrides, 
and sulfides. 

f. Slug discharge. Wastewaters at a flow rate or containing such 
concentrations or quantities of pollutants that exceed for any time period 
longer than fifteen (15) minutes more than five (5) times the average 
twenty-four (24) hour concentration, quantities, or flow during normal 
operation and that would cause a treatment process upset and subsequent 
loss of treatment efficiency. 

g. Radioactive wastes. Radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or 
concentration that they do not comply with regulations or orders issued by 
the appropriate authority having control over their use and which will or 
may cause damage or hazards to the sewerage facilities or personnel 
operating the system. 

4. The following described substances, materials, waters, or waste shall be limited in 
discharges to municipal systems to concentrations or quantities which will not harm 
either the sewers, waste water treatment process or equipment, will not have an 
adverse effect on the receiving stream, or will not otherwise endanger lives, limb, 
public property, or constitute a nuisance. The public works supervisor may set 
limitations lower than the limitations established in the regulations below if in the 
public works supervisor’s opinion such more severe limitations are necessary to 
meet the above objectives. In forming the public works supervisor’s opinion as to 
the acceptability, the public works supervisor will give consideration to such factors 
as the quantity of subject waste in relation to flows and velocities in the sewers, 
materials of construction of the sewers, the wastewater treatment process 
employed, capacity of the wastewater treatment plant, degree of treatability of the 
waste in the wastewater treatment plant, and other pertinent factors. The limitations 
or restrictions on materials or characteristics of waste or wastewaters discharged to 
the sanitary sewer which shall not be violated without approval of the public works 
supervisor are as follows: 

a. Wastewater having a temperature higher than one hundred fifty (150) 
degrees Fahrenheit [sixty-five (65) degrees Celsius]. 

b. Wastewater containing more than twenty-five (25) milligrams per liter of 
petroleum oil, nonbiodegradable cutting oils, or product of mineral oil 
origin. 

c. Wastewater from industrial plants containing floatable oils, fat, or grease. 



11 

d. Any garbage that has not been properly shredded. Garbage grinders may be 
connected to sanitary sewers from homes, hotels, institutions, restaurants, 
hospitals, catering establishments, or similar places where garbage 
originates from the preparation of food in kitchens for the purpose of 
consumption on the premises or when served by caterers. 

e. Any waters or wastes containing iron, chromium, copper, zinc, and similar 
objectionable or toxic substances to such degree that any such material 
received in the composite wastewater at the wastewater treatment works 
exceeds the limits established by the public works supervisor for such 
materials. 

f. Any waters or wastes containing odor-producing substances such as 
phenols exceeding limits which may be established by the public works 
supervisor. 

g. Any radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or concentration as may 
exceed limits established by the public works supervisor in compliance with 
applicable state or federal regulations. 

h. Quantities of flow, concentrations, or both which constitute a “slug” as 
defined herein. 

i. Waters or wastes containing substances which are not amenable to 
treatment or reduction by the wastewater treatment processes employed, or 
are amenable to treatment only to such a degree that the wastewater 
treatment plant effluent cannot meet the requirements of other agencies 
having jurisdiction over discharge to the receiving waters. 

j. Any water or wastes which, by interaction with other water or wastes in the 
public sewer system, release poisonous or obnoxious gases, form suspended 
solids which interfere with the collection system, or create a condition 
deleterious to structures and treatment processes. 

k. Any wastes which are not susceptible to treatment or which interfere with 
the biological processes or efficiency of the treatment system or will pass 
through the system causing a violation of the City’s NPDES permit. 

5. If any waters or wastes are discharged, or are proposed to be discharged to the 
public sewers, which waters contain the substances or possess the characteristics 
enumerated in subsection (4) of this section, and which in the judgment of the 
public works supervisor, may have a deleterious effect upon the wastewater 
facilities, processes, equipment, or receiving waters, or which otherwise create a 
hazard to life or constitute a public nuisance, the public works supervisor may: 

a. Reject the wastes; 

b. Require pretreatment to an acceptable condition for discharge to the public 
sewers; 



12 

c. Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge; and/or 

d. Require payment to cover the added costs of handling and treating the 
wastes not covered by sewer charges. 

If the public works supervisor permits the pretreatment or equalization of waste 
flows, the design and installation of the plants and equipment shall be subject to the 
review and approval of the public works supervisor and the State Department of 
Health. 

6. Grease, oil, and sand interceptors shall be provided when, in the opinion of the 
public works supervisor, they are necessary for the proper handling of liquid wastes 
containing floatable grease in excessive amounts as specified herein, or any 
flammable wastes, sand, or other harmful ingredients; except that such interceptors 
shall not be required for private living quarters of dwelling units. All interceptors 
shall be of a type and capacity approved by the state plumbing code and shall be 
located as to be readily and easily accessible for cleaning and inspection. In the 
maintaining of these interceptors, the owner shall be responsible for the proper 
removal and disposal by appropriate means of the collected material and shall 
maintain records of the dates and means of disposal which are subject to review by 
the public works supervisor. Any removal of the collected materials not performed 
by owner’s personnel must be performed by a licensed waste disposal firms. 

7. Where pretreatment or flow-equalizing facilities are provided or required by any 
waters or wastes, they shall be maintained continuously in satisfactory and effective 
operation by the owner at the owner’s expense. 

8. When required by the public works supervisor, the owner of any property serviced 
by a building sewer carrying industrial wastes shall install a suitable structure 
together with such necessary meters and other appurtenances in the building sewer 
to facilitate observation, sampling, and measurement of the wastes. Such structures, 
when required, shall be accessibly and safely located, and shall be constructed in 
accordance with plans approved by the public works supervisor. The structure shall 
be installed by the owner at the owner’s expense, and shall be maintained by the 
owner so as to be safe and accessible at all times. 

9. The public works supervisor may require a user of sewer services to provide 
information needed to determine compliance with this section. These requirements 
may include: 

a. Wastewaters discharge peak rate and volume over a specified time period. 

b. Chemical analyses of wastewaters. 

c. Information on raw materials, processes, and products affecting wastewater 
volume and quality. 

d. Quantity and disposition of specific liquid, slug, oil, solvent, or other 
materials important to sewer use control. 



13 

e. A plot plan of sewers of the user’s property showing sewer and pretreatment 
facility location. 

f. Details of wastewater pretreatment facilities. 

g. Details of systems to prevent and control the losses of materials through 
spills to the municipal sewer. 

10. All measurements, tests, and analyses of the characteristics of waters and wastes to 
which reference is made in this section shall be determined in accordance with the 
latest edition of “Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Waste 
Water” published by the American Public Health Association. Sampling methods, 
location, times, durations, and frequencies are to be determined on an individual 
basis by the public works supervisor. 

11. No statement contained in this section shall be construed as preventing any special 
agreement or arrangement between the City and any industrial concern whereby an 
industrial waste of unusual strength or character may be accepted by the City for 
treatment. 

9-0107. WASTE PROHIBITED FROM BEING DISCHARGED TO THE 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT SYSTEM. The discharge of wastes containing materials in 
such quantities to be detrimental to the bacterial activity required for wastewater treatment is 
hereby prohibited. The discharge of wastes which cause or are likely to cause maintenance 
problems, such as hindering flow, blocking pipes, and/or clogging pumps, is hereby prohibited. 
The discharge of liquid or vapor, having a temperature higher than one hundred fifty (150) degrees 
Fahrenheit or which liquid or vapor could interfere with the operation of the controls for either a 
pumping station or the treatment facilities, shall be prohibited. 

9-0108.  CERTAIN DISCHARGES OF STORM SEWER WATER DEEMED 
NUISANCE. 

1. Discharges of storm water, groundwater, roof runoff, yard drainage, yard fountain 
or pond overflow, or other surface runoff waters into areas with inadequate drainage 
tend to create a harborage for insect and vermin infestations and are hereby deemed 
a nuisance. No owner, occupant, or user of property therefore may discharge any 
storm water, groundwater, roof runoff, yard drainage, yard fountain or pond 
overflow, or other surface runoff waters in such a manner so as to allow the 
collection of the same on their property or other properties without proper drainage. 
Discharges of storm water, groundwater, roof runoff, yard drainage, yard fountain 
or pond overflow, or other surface runoff waters by the use of such devices as sump 
pumps must be made directly into the storm sewer system of the City of Horace or 
drainage ditches which run thereto. 

2. No owner, occupant, or user of property abutting Park District property of the City 
of Horace shall cause or allow water from any spout, sump pump, or similar device 
to be directly or indirectly deposited on the Park District property. Similarly, no 
person shall deposit snow, earth, construction material, or other substance on Park 
District property of the City of Horace without written permission from the City 



14 

Auditor. Notwithstanding such written permission issued, no person shall deposit 
any material containing salt, sand, or other substance which may be harmful to 
vegetation or other Park District property. 

3. The City Auditor shall have the authority to issue letters to violators of this section. 
If the violation is not abated within the time set forth in the notice of violation, the 
City Attorney is authorized to prosecute such offenses in the Horace Municipal 
Court or to seek abatement in the District Court. 

9-0109. POWER AND AUTHORITY OF INSPECTORS. 

1. The public works supervisor, or designee, bearing proper credentials and 
identification shall be permitted to enter all properties for the purposes of 
inspection, observation, measurement, sampling, and testing pertinent to discharge 
to the community system in accordance with the provisions of this section. 

2. The public works supervisor, or designee, is authorized to obtain information 
concerning industrial processes which have a direct bearing on the kind and source 
of discharge to the wastewater collection system. The industry may withhold 
information considered confidential. The industry must establish that the revelation 
to the public of the information in question might result in a fiscal advantage to 
competitors. 

3. While performing the necessary work on private properties referred to in subsection 
(1) of this section, the public works supervisor, or designee, shall observe all safety 
rules applicable to the premises established by the company, and the company shall 
be held harmless for injury or death to the City employees, and the City shall 
indemnify the company against loss or damage to its property by City employees 
and against liability claims and demands for personal injury or property damage 
asserted against the company growing out of the gauging and sampling operation, 
except as may be caused by negligence or failure of the company to maintain safe 
conditions. 

4. The public works supervisor, or designee, shall be permitted to enter all private 
properties through which the City holds a duly negotiated easement for the purposes 
of, but not limited to, inspection, observation, measurement, sampling, repair, and 
maintenance of any portion of the wastewater facilities lying within said easement. 
All entry and subsequent work, if any, on said easement, shall be done in full 
accordance with the terms of the duly negotiated easement pertaining to the private 
property involved. 

9-0110. MONTHLY CHARGES FOR SEWER SERVICE. 

1. Sewer charges shall be on a monthly basis covering the respective monthly periods 
each year. The term “residential” as used herein shall include all premises occupied 
and used exclusively as a home by not more than two (2) families. The term “non-
residential” shall include all other premises. When a charge is determined by 
metered water consumption, the amount of water on which the charge is based shall 
be that multiple of one thousand (1,000) gallons closest to the actual meter reading.  



15 

2. The owner or occupant of each residential or non-residential premises connected 
with the sewer system of the City shall pay a minimum service charge per month 
as set by resolution of the City Council.  

3. In addition to the minimum service charge, all residential premises shall pay an 
additional charge as set by resolution of the City Council per one thousand (1,000) 
gallons for flows greater than ten thousand (10,000) gallons of water per month.  

4. In addition to the minimum service charge, all non-residential premises shall pay 
an additional charge as set by resolution of the City Council per one thousand 
(1,000) gallons for all flows greater than one thousand (1,000) gallons of water per 
month. 

9-0111. SEWER RATES AND CHARGES – BILLING. The City Auditor shall 
render a statement at the end of the first full week of each month setting forth separately the charges 
for water and for sewage service for the preceding month to each premise connected with the water 
or sewage system.  

9-0112. WHEN BILL DUE: FAILURE TO PAY. All bills for water service, sewage 
service, charges and rentals, and water deliveries and labor and materials furnished each month 
shall be due and payable on the 25th day of the month at the office of the City Auditor. A monthly 
late fee, in an amount set by resolution of the City Council, will be assessed for all payments 
received after the 25th day of the month. If such bills, or any part thereof, are not paid within sixty 
(60) days of the date of the bill, the City will provide written notice, at least ten (10) days prior 
thereto, of the City’s intent to shut off the supply of water to the premises for which the bill is 
rendered and shall not be turned on again until the entire balance has been paid, together with an 
amount as set by resolution of the City Council for recontinuing the service. A fee will also be 
charged for all returned checks and returned ACH payments, as set by resolution of the City 
Council. 

9-0113. LIABILITY OF OWNERS AND OCCUPANTS FOR SERVICES. The 
owner and occupant of each premises shall be jointly and severally liable for all charges for water 
and sewage service and garbage during the period of their respective ownership or occupancy. 
Water will not be furnished to any property which is indebted to the City. 

9-0114. CITY’S AND CUSTOMER’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR REPAIRS TO 
SEWER LINES. The City shall be responsible for maintenance and repair of leaks or other defects 
in the sewer main. The property owner shall be responsible for maintenance and repairs of leaks 
or other defects from the end of the wye on the sewer main to the premises. Property owners are 
responsible for the service line from the main including the hole in the main and the wye.  If there 
is a leak and it cannot be determined as to whether the leak is in that part of the line for which the 
City or the owner has responsibility for repair and maintenance, the City may make the necessary 
excavation, and if such leak is found to be in the service line on the owner’s property, the owner 
shall immediately repair such leak, backfill such excavation, and pay the City for the cost of 
making the excavation. The City may shut off the water service on any owner who fails or neglects 
to repair a leak for which they are responsible for maintenance or who fails to pay the cost of the 
City in making the excavation to determine the location of the leak if the leak is on the property of 
the owner. 



16 

9-0102. GARBAGE SERVICE. Any person with water service requesting not to have 
garbage picked up at the water connected address should notify the City Auditor, at which time 
the City Auditor will notify the waste company hired not to pick up any garbage from the person 
requesting this said item. 

 Any person with water service with no garbage pick-up will be responsible for the removal 
of any garbage without use of the City dumpsters or another resident’s curbside pick-up place. 

9-0103.  DISCHARGE. No person may discharge or cause to be discharged, any storm 
water, groundwater, roof runoff, yard drainage, yard fountain or pond overflow, or other surface 
waters into the sanitary collection system of the City of Horace between the dates of March 1 to 
November 30 during any calendar year. Before March 1, 2002, any persons, firm or corporation 
having a roof, sump pump, swimming pool discharge, or surface drain now connected and/or 
discharging into the sanitary sewer system shall disconnect and/or remove the same. Any 
disconnects or openings in the sanitary sewer system shall be closed or repaired in an effective, 
workmanlike manner, as approved by the City Engineer for the City of Horace. 

1. Every person owning improved real estate that discharges into the City’s sanitary 
sewer system shall allow City employee(s) to inspect the building to confirm that 
there is no sump pump or other prohibited discharge into the sanitary sewer system 
during the prohibited time period. Any person refusing to allow their property to be 
inspected within fourteen (14) days of the date City employee(s) are denied 
admittance to the property shall immediately become subject to a surcharge 
hereinafter provided for.  

2. A surcharge of $100.00 per month is hereby imposed and added to every sewer 
billing mailed on and after March 1, 2002, to property owners who are not in 
compliance with Paragraph 1 of this section. The surcharge shall be added every 
month through November, 2002, until and unless the property is in compliance. The 
surcharge shall continue to be levied monthly for the months of March through 
November (both inclusive) for every year on properties not complying with 
paragraph 1 of this section. Provided, the surcharge shall not be charged unless a 
property has been inspected and found not to be in compliance, or if the person 
owning improved real estate refuses to allow an inspection. 

3. When a structure is being constructed in the City of Horace, if at or prior to final 
inspection City staff determine that the sump pump connection has been illegally 
connected to the City’s sanitary sewer system such that there will be a permanent 
discharge into the City’s sanitary sewer system, there shall be levied a $500 
administrative fine against the general contractor for the structure found to be in 
violation. If after 24 hours after written notice from the City the general contractor 
has not remedied the situation so that the sump pump connection can be arranged 
so that no surface runoff or groundwater can enter into the City’s sanitary sewer 
system from May 1 to November 30 of each year, there shall be an additional $100 
administrative fine for each day such a violation exists. In addition, the Building 
Inspector shall not issue another building permit within the jurisdiction of the 
Building Inspector of the City of Horace for that contractor until the violation has 
been remedied and any administrative fine has been fully paid to the City. A 



17 

contractor who is informed of the administrative penalty shall have seven (7) days 
from the date of his notification of the same to request, in writing, a hearing on the 
issue of whether or not the basis for the administrative penalty actually exists. Such 
letter must be filed with the City Auditor of the City of Horace. Upon receipt of 
such a letter, in a timely fashion the City Auditor shall set the matter for hearing at 
the next City Council meeting. The contractor claiming that the basis for the penalty 
is incorrect shall have the burden at that hearing to establish that the violation set 
forth by the City staff is, in fact, incorrect. The City Council shall either confirm 
the determination of violation by City staff or modify or eliminate the penalty if the 
evidence is such that it establishes no violation occurred. 

9-0104.  CERTAIN DISCHARGES OF STORM SEWER WATER DEEMED 
NUISANCE. 

1. Discharges of storm water, groundwater, roof runoff, yard drainage, yard fountain 
or pond overflow, or other surface runoff waters into areas with inadequate drainage 
tend to create a harborage for insect and vermin infestations and are hereby deemed 
a nuisance. No owner, occupant or user of property therefore may discharge any 
storm water, groundwater, roof runoff, yard drainage, yard fountain or pond 
overflow, or other surface runoff waters in such a manner so as to allow the 
collection of the same on their property or other properties without proper drainage. 
Discharges of storm water, groundwater, roof runoff, yard drainage, yard fountain 
or pond overflow, or other surface runoff waters by the use of such devices as sump 
pumps must be made directly into the storm sewer system of the City of Horace or 
drainage ditches which run thereto. 

2. No owner, occupant, or user of property abutting Park District property of the City 
of Horace shall cause or allow water from any spout, sump pump, or similar device 
to be directly or indirectly deposited on the Park District property. Similarly, no 
person shall deposit snow, earth, construction material, or other substance on Park 
District property of the City of Horace without written permission from the City 
Auditor of the City of Horace. Notwithstanding such written permission issued, no 
person shall deposit any material containing salt, sand, or other substance which 
may be harmful to vegetation or other Park District property. 

3. The City Auditor of the City of Horace shall have the authority to issue letters to 
violators of this section. If the violation is not abated within the time set forth in the 
notice of violation, the City Attorney is authorized to prosecute such offenses in the 
Horace Municipal Court or to seek abatement in the District Court. 

9-01050115. PENALTY. A violation of this chapter may be punishable as an infraction 
as set forth in Section 1-0211 of these ordinances.  

1. Any person found to be violating any provision of this section shall be served by 
the City with written notice stating the nature of the violation and providing a 
reasonable time limit not to exceed thirty (30) days for the satisfactory correction 
thereof. The offender shall, within the period of time states in such notice, 
permanently cease all violations. 



18 

2. During the 30-day period, if the cited user is in disagreement with the public works 
supervisor’s findings, the user may appeal to the City Council. The City Council 
shall upon receipt of an appeal, convene a meeting for the purpose of resolving the 
dispute within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the appeal. The City Council shall: 

a. Issue notices of hearings requesting the attendance and testimony of 
witnesses and the production of evidence relevant to any matter involved in 
any hearing.  

b. Take evidence. 

c. Take a transcript of the proceedings for the public record. 

d. Based on all evidence and testimony received, the City Council shall make 
a decision and notify both parties of such a decision. 

3. Any person who shall continue any violation beyond the time limit in subsection 9-
0115(2) (30 days) shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. 

4. Any person who has appealed to the City Council and lost the appeal shall have 
fifteen (15) days in which to take action to correct the person’s violation. At the 
end of fifteen (15) days if no action is taken the violator shall be guilty of a 
misdemeanor. 

1.5. Any person violating any of the provisions of this section shall become liable to the 
City for any expense, loss, or damage occasioned the City by reason of such 
violation. 

SECTION 2.  Section 9-0229 of Title IX of the Revised Ordinances of 2003 of the City of 

Horace, North Dakota, is hereby created and enacted to read as follows: 

9-0229. GARBAGE SERVICE. Any person with water service requesting not to have 
garbage picked up at the water connected address should notify the City Auditor, at which time 
the City Auditor will notify the waste company hired not to pick up any garbage from the person 
requesting this said item. 

 Any person with water service with no garbage pick-up will be responsible for the removal 
of any garbage without use of the City dumpsters or another resident’s curbside pick-up place. 

SECTION 3. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and 

after the date of its final passage and publication.  

       APPROVED:  
 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Kory Peterson 



19 

       Mayor of Horace, North Dakota 
  



20 

ATTEST:  
 
 
______________________________ 
Brenton Holper 
Horace City Auditor  
 
 
Date of First Reading:  
 
Date of Second Reading:  
 
Date of Publication: 



 CITY OF HORACE:  

CITY COUNCIL  

STAFF REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City of Horace City Council Staff Report  
  

Entitlements 
Requested: 

Subdivision Zone Change 
Design 
Review 

Conditional Use Variance Lot Spilt Other 

Title:  
856 Harvest Circle 
Variance Request 

City Council 
Date: 

April 3, 2023 
Application 

Number: 
CD-2023-02 

Parcel 
Number:  

15025800060000 Staff Contact:  
Jace Hellman 

Owner(s):  Black Butte Development LLC Applicant(s) Marlene & Deny Dahl 

Applicant 
Contact 

MKDahl@q.com Representative 
Dale 

Hammerschmidt 
Representative 

Contact 
Dale@hammerschmidt 

construction.com 

Purpose 

The applicant requests a variance from Horace City Code section 17.5.6, Subsection 5 (b), which requires a 
minimum rear yard setback within the R-3 zoning district to be thirty (30) feet. The request is to allow a 
portion of the rear of the house to extend four (4) feet into the setback to allow for additional four (4) feet to 
be added to the house to allow the tv room to be wider for ADA purposes for the owners. 

Statement of Fact 

Future Land Use Map Classification  The property is currently designated as Community Focus Area 

Existing Land Use Vacant – Future Single-Family Home 

Current Zoning Medium Density Residential (R-3) 

Area Size  0.22 acres 

Adjacent Zoning Districts North: PF (Public Facilities); East: R-4 (Medium Density Residential); 
South:  R-3 (Medium Density Residential); West: R-4 (Medium Density 
Residential) 

Land Dedication Requirements None (Existing Residential Subdivision) 

Consistency with Comprehensive Plan and Future Land Use Map 

The proposed application does not propose to change the current zoning district classification of the property 
in question. The property was zoned in accordance with the approval the Arrowwood 3rd Addition. Staff would 
note that the R-3 zoning district classification is not consistent with the City’s Future Land Use Map, which 
designates the property as a Community Focus Area. 

Discussion and Observation 

The applicant requests a variance from Horace City Code section 17.5.6, Subsection 5 (b), which requires a 
minimum rear yard setback within the R-3 zoning district to be thirty (30) feet. This request, if approved would 
allow the applicant to construct an addition four feet on to a portion of the proposed single-family dwelling to 
accommodate a wider tv room to allow more maneuverability within the dwelling.  
 



2 

 

 

 

 

Attachments 

1. Variance Application 

2. Vicinity Map 

3. Proposed Site Plan 

4. Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes Draft - March 14, 2023 

The applicant’s representative has stated that the special condition and circumstance that exists is that the 
soon-to-be owners of the property are elderly, and that the request would allow for additional space in one 
room to allow for the homeowners to navigate more easily.  
 
Following review of the application and site, staff is unable to identify the unnecessary hardship, such as site 
and topographical constraints, property shape or location, that is specific to this property and that would 
require the proposed structure to encroach in the required rear yard setback. In staff’s opinion, there are no 
special conditions and/or circumstances which are peculiar to this property and that are not applicable to other 
lots that are zoned R-3, both in direct vicinity of this property, and throughout the City as well. For those 
reasons, staff is not able to recommend that Planning and Zoning Commission recommend approval of the 
proposed variance application. 
 
Additionally, staff would note that Arrowwood 3rd Addition is not available to build in or pull permits in at this 
time. Construction of the development is currently underway. As a result, the applicants do not currently own 
the property that the variance is being requested for. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission held a public hearing on March 14, 2023, to review the proposed 
application (a draft of the meeting minutes has been provided as an attachment to this staff report). The 
Planning and Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend denial of the Variance request for 856 Harvest Circle. 

Staff’s Recommendation 

To accept the findings and recommendations of the staff report and recommend denial of the 856 Harvest 
Circle Variance to the City Council.  

Planning and Zoning Commission Recommendation 

On March 14, 2023, the Planning and Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend denial of the Variance 
request for 856 Harvest Circle to the City Council.  













Maust Way

R
e

d
R

iv
e

r
V

a
ll

e
y

&
W

e
s

te
rn

Southwood Dr

S
o
u
th
w
o
o
d
D
r

M
a
u
s
t
W
a
y

Harvest Cir

Willow Court
Park

R
e

d
R

iv
e

r
V

a
ll

e
y

&
W

e
s

te
rn

Liberty Ln
Liberty Ln

H
a
rv
e
s
t
C
ir

H
a
rv
e
s
t
C
ir

W
illo

w
C
t

Liberty Ln

856 Harvest Circle
Variance Application
Vicinity Map

Esri Community Maps Contributors, County of Cass, ND, State of North Dakota, © OpenStreetMap, Microsoft,
Esri, HERE, Garmin, SafeGraph, GeoTechnologies, Inc, METI/NASA, USGS, EPA, NPS, US Census Bureau,
USDA, Fargo, North Dakota, Maxar, Microsoft

´





 

 
 

 

 

 

HORACE PLANNING and ZONING COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 
March 14, 2023 | 6 p.m. 

Horace Fire Hall Event Center | 413 Main Street, Horace ND 58047 
 
 

Present: Planning and Zoning Commissioners, Amy Beaton (Via Teams), Julie Hochhalter, Russell Sahr and Doug 
Wendel; Community Development Director Jace Hellman; City Council Member Naomi Burkland 
 
Due to Chair Beaton calling into the meeting, Vice Chair Hochhalter ran the meeting. 

 
Vice Chair Hochhalter called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Agenda Item 1: Declare Quorum 
 
Agenda Item 2: Regular Agenda 
Commissioner Wendel moved to approve the Regular Agenda. Seconded by Commissioner Sahr. All in favor, none 
opposed. Motion carried 4-0. 

 

Agenda Item 3: Approve the February 28, 2023, Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes 
Chair Beaton moved to approve the minutes from February 28, 2023. Seconded by Commissioner Sahr. All in favor, 
none opposed. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Agenda Item 4: 856 Harvest Circle Variance Request | Jace Hellman, Community Development Director 
Mr. Hellman presented the application for variance request. Mr. Hellman explained that the applicant has requested 
a variance from Horace City Code section 17.5.6, Subsection 5 (b), which requires the minimum rear yard setback 
within the R-3 zoning district to be thirty feet. If the request is approved, this would allow the applicant to construct 
an additional four feet onto a portion of the proposed single-family dwelling to accommodate a wider tv room to 
allow more maneuverability within the dwelling. Mr. Hellman went on to explain that the applicants representative 
has stated that the special condition that exists is that the soon-to-be owners of the property are elderly, and the 
request would allow for additional space in one room to allow for the homeowners to navigate more easily. Mr. 
Hellman stated that from a technical review of what a variance application is for, he was unable to identify the 
unnecessary hardship, such as site and topographical constraints, property shape or location, that is specific to this 
property and that would require a proposed structure to encroach into the required setback. Mr. Hellman went on 
to say that there unfortunately are no special conditions or circumstances that are peculiar to this property that are 
not applicable to other lots that are zoned R-3, both in direct vicinity of this property, and throughout the City as 
well. Mr. Hellman recommended that the Planning and Zoning Commission recommend denial of the proposed 
application. Lastly, Mr. Hellman noted that Arrowood 3rd Addition is currently not constructed and no available to 
build in or pull permits within. 
 
Vice Chair Hochhalter opened the public hearing for the Variance request at 6:03 PM. 
 
The applicant’s representative asked that with the vacating of the Railroad Right-of-Way if the property lines would 
be affected the property lines as well. Mr. Hellman said it would not impact the current boundary of the 
development. Commissioner Sahr mentioned that there would most likely be a recreational pathway put in place of 
the Railroad. Commissioner Sahr mentioned that there are few variances that are granted, and those that have 
already were properties that were already built upon. Commissioner Wendel asked if the zoning of property under 
the new ordinance would allow their proposal. Mr. Hellman explained that per the current proposed zoning map, it 
is unlikely that would. Mr. Hellman also mentioned that the proposed zoning ordinance would not apply to the 



 

 
 

 

 

application that is front of them. Commissioner Sahr explained that the ordinance is specific, that there must be an 
undue hardship, and that typically that hardship involves the lot. Commissioner Beaton asked what percentage of 
the lot the proposed house is going to cover. The applicant’s representative stated that is below that standard. 
 
Vice Chair Hochhalter closed the public hearing for the Variance request at 6:12 PM. 
 
Commissioner Sahr moved to recommend denial of the variance request for 856 Harvest Circle. Seconded by 
Commissioner Wendel. All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Agenda Item 5: Horace Elementary School Expansion | Jace Hellman, Community Development Director 
Richard Meier, YHR Partners, discussed the proposed expansion to the elementary school. Mr. Meier explained that 
the proposed expansion was a 7500 square foot addition that is designed to look the same as the existing building. 
Commissioner Wendel asked if the mechanical units are on the exterior of the addition. Mr. Meier explained that 
the existing units were sized to accommodate this addition, and that they are in the interior of the building. 
Councilmember Burkland asked how much more is the school planning on adding to this location. Mr. Meier stated 
that this is the biggest that this elementary school will get. 
 
Commissioner Sahr moved to approve the design review request for the Horace Elementary School Expansion. 
Seconded by Chair Beaton. All in favor, none opposed. Motion Carried 4-0. 
 
Agenda Item 6: Horace Elementary School Playground Site Modification | Jace Hellman, Community Development 
Director 
Mr. Hellman explained this site plan modification is a request to add additional basketball courts to the elementary 
school grounds. Mr. Hellman mentioned that this site plan review is front of the Planning and Zoning Commission as 
a design review because it was a modification of a previously approved site plan.   
 
Commissioner Wendel moved to approve the site plan modification for Horace Elementary. Seconded by 
Commissioner Sahr. All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Agenda Item 7: 9800 Industrial Drive – Phase 2 | Jace Hellman, Community Development Director 
Mr. Hellman mentioned that the first phase of the building was approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission 
in the beginning of March in 2022. Mr. Hellman discussed that this proposed building is a direct repeat of the first 
phase in terms of design. Mr. Hellman did mention that the applicant had inquired about approving the entire site, 
including the remaining phase which is planned to another copy of the building in front of them now. Vice Chair 
Hochhalter said that they would prefer to see the design review request with each phase. Commissioner Wendel 
asked if there was enough parking provided. Mr. Hellman explained that the challenge with shop condo/flex space 
buildings is that the end user is not identified at this time, so you have to find the right balance, so you don’t under 
park the area or over park it. The Commission discussed screening of the property as a whole from potential different 
uses to the north. Commissioner Wendel asked if there was a specific number of plants they needed. Mr. Hellman 
explained that there are required plant units within the City’s ordinances, however, an industrially zoned property 
is exempt from those unit requirements, but they are encouraged to participate. 
 
Commissioner Wendel moved to approve the design review request for 9800 Industrial Drive – phase 2 with the 
recommendation that the applicant install additional trees along the northern boundary of the property beyond the 
proposed paving. Seconded by Commissioner Sahr. All in favor, none opposed. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Agenda Item 8: Adjournment at 6:43 p.m. 
 
 


	03. - (Updated) -April 3, 2023, Horace City Council Meeting Agenda
	04. - Water, Sewer, Storm, and Street ID 2022-11 (Cub Creek 2nd Addition) PE No. 3_TO CITY
	04a. - Claims Report
	04b. - City of Horace - Pledge Report
	04d. - Horace South Road Request Letter 3.7.23
	05. - (approved by legal) 3.20.23 Horace City Council Meeting Minutes
	09. - MEMO to City RE District No. 2022-4 Wall Ave RE Plans and Specs-signed
	10. - Memo to City RE Sanitary Sewer Ordinance March 14, 2023
	10. - Sanitary Sewer Ord. 2022-17 - V2 (clean)
	11. - MEMO to City RE District No. 2022-9 (63rd Street) RE Plans and Specs-signed
	11. - Sanitary Sewer Ord. 2022-17 - V2 (clean)
	12. - 856 Harvest Circle - Variance Request CC Staff Report - 4.3.2023

